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NOTICE
Notice is herehy given that the 30" Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Memhers of Martin
and Harris Laboratories Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Friday, 27 day of September,

2024 at NH-B, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Village, Pachgaon (Fazalwas), Distt. Gurgaon, Haryana at
09:00 A.M. (I5T) to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS(ES):

1. To receive, consider and adopt:

{a)  The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
on March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.
and

(b)  The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To declare Dividend on Equity Shares.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Nasim Uddin (DIN: 09670604) who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment,

4. To appoint M/s. Krishan K. Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration
: JO009N) as § \udi f the C

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 139 and 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) read
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable provisions
of the Act, including any Statutory modification(s) or re-enactment therefore for the time beingin
force), M/s. Krishan K. Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 000009N) be
and is hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company [rom the conclusion of this
Annual general meeting until the conclusion of the 31% Annual general meeting of the Company,
on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board and the Auditors, plus
applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred in connection with the
aforesaid audit.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS
5.  Toratify the remuneration of Cost Auditors of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:
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"RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") and Rules thereunder (including any statutory modification or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and all other applicable provisions, if any,
approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the remuneration payable
ta M/s Sourabh Jain & Associates, Cost Accountants, appointed by the Board of Directors as Cost
Auditors of the Company to conduct the audit of the Cost Records of the Company for the financial
year ending on March 31, 2025, amounting to INR 50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) per

annum plus reimbursement of out of pocket expenses at actuals.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things as may be deemed necessary, proper or desirable for the purpose of giving
effect to this Resolution.”

6. To consider any other resolution on the approval of the Chairman.

By Order of the Board
For Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited

Nasim Uddin
(Director)
DIN: 09670604

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30t August, 2024
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Notes:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ALSO ENTITLED
TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIM AND THE
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT OF PROXY IN
ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF
THE COMPANY NOT LATER THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING BLANK PROXY FORM IS ANNEXED.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in
the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. A member
holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company may appoint a single
person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
shareholder.

Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he
so desire.

Route map of the venue of the meeting (including prominent land mark) is annexed.

Keeping in view the convenience of the Members, documents relating to shares will -
continue to be accepted at the Registered Office of the Company.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend the
meeting are requested to send a certified copy of Board Resolution authorizing their
representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed
from Friday, 20" September, 2024 to Wednesday, 26" September, 2024 (both days
inclusive) for determining eligibility for payment of Dividend, if declared at the meeting.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Registers of Contracts
or Arrangements in which the directors are interested maintained under section 189 of the
Companies, 2013 on all working days, between 14:00-16:00 hours upto the date of the
meeting and shall alse be available for inspection at the Annual General Meeting.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate all changes pertaining
to their bank mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change in address and e-mail
address etc, to the Company under the signatures of first/joint holder(s).

The dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors, if declared at the meeting, will be
paid within a period of 30 days from the date of declaration, by the members in the AGM to
those members whose name appear on the Register of Members as on Friday, 20t
Seplember, 2024,

Reserve Bank of India has initiated National Electronic Clearing services (NECS) for credit
of Dividend directly to the Bank Account of the Members. Members are requested to
register their Bank Account details (Core Banking Solutions enabled account number, 9
digit MICR and 11 digit IFS Code).
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10.

11.

12.

Members are requested to note that dividends that are not claimed within seven years
from the date of transfer to the Company's Unpaid Dividend Account, will as per Section
124 of the Act, be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection fund (IEFPF).

Members are requested:

To bring Attendance Slip duly completed and signed at the meeting and not to carry
hriefcase or bag inside the meeting venue for security reasons;

Ta quote their Folio No./DP ID - Client ID and e-mail ID in all correspondence; and

To please note that no gift/gift coupon/refreshment coupon will be distributed at the
meeting.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of Special business item to be transacted at the AGM is annexed as Annexure-l.
Necessary information of the Director seeking Re-appointment at the ensuing AGM, as
required under Secretarial Standard -2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India is also appended to this Notice as Annexure-|.

By Order of the Board
For Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited

Nasim Uddin

(Director)
DIN: 09670604

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30" August, 2024
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ITEM NO. 5:
TO RATIFY THE REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY

The Board has approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s Sourabh Jain & Associates,
Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for
the financial vear ending on March 31, 2025 at remuneration as specified in the resolution and
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses at actuals.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable provisions, the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of the
Company. Your Board recommends the passing of Ordinary Resolution set out at [tem No. 5 of
the Notice for approval by the shareholders in the interest of the Company.

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and /or their relatives
is concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the resolution set out at [tem No. 5 of the
Notice.

ANNEXURE-I TO THE NOTICE

INFORMATION RELATION TO THE DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE 30™
AGM

As per the requirement of Clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard -2 (Revised) as issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, a statement containing the details of
concerned Director is given below:

Name Mr. Nasim Uddin

Category / Designation of Director Non-Executive Director

DIN 09670604

Date of Birth / Age 03-September-1973

Profile / Background, Details Enriched experience in the field of
accounts with 20+ years' experience in
finance

Qualifications Graduate in B.Com from Delhi university

Experience and Expertise 20 year experience

Terms and condition of Re- | Retire by Rotation

appointment

Remuneration Last Drawn, if | N.A.

applicable
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Date of First appointment on the Board | June 18", 2022

Directorships in other Companies One

Membership [/ Chairmanship of | Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee of the Board
No. of Shares held in the Company None
Relationship with other Directors, KMP | None
and Manager of the Company
No. of Meetings attended during the | 08
year

Notes:

1. The above information is as on the date of this Notice,

2. The above Director is not disqualified and / or debarred by virtue of any order passed
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, any Court or any such other Statutory Authority, to be re-
appointed / continue as a Director of the Company.

(6)



Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited

NH-B, DELHI JAIPUR HIGHWAY, VILLAGE, PACHGAON
(FAZALWAS), DISTT. GURGADN, HARYAMNA

CIN: U24239HR1 993PLL03 3630

ROUTE MAP

Drawing Tt [ QCATION MAR M erthi

Seala MTS

Dwia:

Diraw By C M SHARREA

Chirchi By

(7}




PROXY FORM

Form No. MGT -11
PROXY FORM
(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

Mame of the Shareholder

Registered address

E-mail 1D

Foilo No./Client 1D

DP ID

I/We, being the member (5] of ...,

hereby appoint

shares of the above named company,

Mame:

Address;

E-Mail ID

Signature

Or failing him /her

Mame:

Address;

E-Mail ID

Signature

Or failing him /her

Mame:

Address:

E-Mail ID

Signature

as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 30 Annual
General Meeting of Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited held on will be held on
Friday, 27% September, 2024 at NH-8, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Village Pachgaon
(Fazalwas), Distt. Gurgaon, Haryana at 09:00 AM. (IST) and at any adjournment thereof
in respect of such resolution as are indicated below:

Put a tick mark for resolution(s)

S.No. | Resolutions Yes No
To receive, consider and adopt: |
1 a. the audited standalone financial statements of the

Company [or the [inancial year ended 315 March, 2024, together
with the reports of the Auditors and Board of Directors thereon;
and

b. the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31% March, 2024 and the
report of the Auditors thereon.
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2 Declaration of Dividend

To appoint a Director in place of Mr, Nasim Uddin (DIN:

3. | 09670604)
To appoint M/s. Krishan K. Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants,
% (Firm Registration No. 000009N) as Statutory Auditors of the
Company

Ratification of the remuneration of Cost Auditors of the
5, Company

To consider any other resolution on the approval of the
5. Chairman.

Signed this , 2024
Affixn
Signature of the Shareholder: Reyenue
Starmp
Signature of Proxy holder(s):
Note:
1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited

at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement
of the meeting.

z: The proxy form should be signed across the revenue stamp as per specimen
signature(s) registered with the Company/Depository Participant.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
30" Annual General Meeting - Friday, 27" day of September, 2024

DP- ID* Name and Address of the
Client ID*/Folio No. Registered
No. of shares held Shareholder/proxy

|/ We certify that | /We am/are registered shareholder/proxy of the Company.

I/We hereby record my /our presence at 30% Annual General Meeting - Friday, 27th
day of September, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) at NH-8, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Village,
Pachgaon (Fazalwas), Distt.Gurgaon, Haryana.

Signature
NOTE: Please complete this and hand it over at the entrance of the hall.
*Applicable for shares held in electronic form.

| No Gift/Gift Coupon/Refreshment Coupon will be distributed at the meeting. |

rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr
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|MAHTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES I.iMITEIﬂ

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

To The Members,
MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 30" Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company along with the Audited Standalone & Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024, The consolidated performance of the Company
and its Subsidiaries have been referred to wherever required.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY
Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
For the financial year ended For the financial year ended

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023  March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Revenue from | 14,614.70 20,516.48 14,614.70 20,516.48
Operations
Other Income 396.68 253.08 3,429.00 2,408.43
Total Income 15,011.38 20,769.56 18,043.70 2292491
Less: Expenditure | (12,267.57) (13514.46) (12,521.46) (13,716.22)
and Depreciation
Net Profit / (Loss) | 2,743.581 7,255.10 5,522.24 9,208.69
before Taxation
Less: Provision of | (726.33) (1875.85) (1,479.40) (2,401.81)
Taxation
MNet Profit / (Loss) 2,017.48 5379.25 4,042.84 £,8060.88
Total 2,060.68 5,376.30 4,086.04 6,803.93
Comprehensive
Income

2. STATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS / BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The Company’s turnover and performance temporarily declined due to necessary upgrades to
the manufacturing unit, driven by recent regulatory changes. The notification of the Ministry of
Health & Family Welfare, dated 28" December 2023, made compliance with new WHO-GMP
standards mandatory. Consequently, the Company’s manufacturing plant had to be shutdown
multiple times during FY 2023-24 for upgradation which significantly impacted revenue, and
further modifications in FY 2024-25 may also be needed. The Board believes these expenses will
be offset by future diversified operations.
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The regulatory framewark for branded generic drugs in India is changing, as the Drugs Technical
Advisory Board considers mandating generic names for single-ingredient formulations. This shift
in regulatory regime will make it commaercially unviable for the company to bear the increasing
cost of acquiring & maintaining trademark licenses for promotion of generic drugs.
Consequently, the Company has principally decided to move away from selling generic drugs
under third-party brands and instead focus on manufacturing.

The Company will be further upgrading its manufacturing facilities and exploring contract
manufacturing opportunities. The Board also supports, on its own and through its subsidiaries,
diversification into new business areas as per the objectives of the Company. The Company
remains committed to regulatory compliance, quality assurance, and strategic agility.

3. SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Equity Share Capital as at 31* March, 2024 stood at Rs 399.60 Lakhs (Rupees Three
Crore Ninety Nine Lakh Sixty Thousand and Four Hundred Only).

There has been no increase [/ decrease in the Authorised and Paid up Share Capital of your
Company during the year under review.

{a) BUY BACK OF SECURITIES
The Company has not bought back any of its Securities during the year under review.

{b) SWEAT EQUITY
The company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review.

(c)  BONUS SHARES
Mo Bonus shares were issued during the year under review.

(d) EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN
The Company has not provided any stock scheme to the employee.

4. DIVIDEND

Your directors are happy to recommend dividend of Rs. 1.80/- per Equity Share, and pay,
pursuant to shareholder’s approval at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

5. RESERVES

Out of the total profit after tax of Rs. 2,017.48 Lakhs for the financial year under review and
unlike previous financial year, nothing is proposed to be transferred this year to the General
Reserve,

B. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND

During the year under review, your Company has not transferred any funds to Investor Education
and Protection Funds (IEPF).
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b CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
There is no change in nature of business as compared to last financial year,

B. CHANGE IN THE NAME AND REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY
There is no change in the name of the Company and registered office address of the Company.

9. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY, HAVING OCCURRED SINCE THE END OF THE YEAR AND TILL THE DATE
OF THE REPORT

Your Company has Non-Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of ASG Biochem

Frivate Limited, which after the end of the Financial Year has been converted into the Egquity

shares of the ASG Biochem Private Limited.

10.  SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
During the year under review, there has been no such Significant and Material Orders passed by

the Regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and your Company’s
operations in future.

Also, there had been no application filed for Corporate insolvency resolution process under “The
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016", by a Financial or operational creditor or by your
Company itself during the period under review.

There was no instance of onetime settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.

11.  SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

As at March 31, 2024, the Company has one (01) subsidiary company in terms of the provisions
of Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”). There are no associate companies or joint venture companies
within the meaning of section 2(6) of the Act.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary prepared in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards, specified under Section 133 of the Act as applicable,
forms part of this Annual Report. The audited annual accounts of the Company will also be kept
open for inspection at the registered office of the company and respective subsidiary of the
companies.

A separate statement as required in terms of Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
is annexed to this report.

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of
the Company’s Subsidiary in Form AOC-1 is attached to the consolidated financial statements.

12. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

A statement comprising the names of top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn and
every person employed throughout the year, who were in receipt of remuneration in terms of
Rule 5{2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
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2014 is not being sent along with this annual report to the members of the Company in line with
the provisions of Section 136 of the Act. Members who are interested in obtaining these
particulars may write email to the Company on am-audit@martinandharris.com

13. DEPOSITS
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the financial year under
review.

14. EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE
REMARKS OF DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND PRACTICING COMPANY
SECRETARY IN THEIR REFORT

The observations of the auditors in their report are self-explanatory and therefore, in the opinion

of the Directors, do not call for any further explanation. The Auditors’ Report does not contain

any qualification, reservation, disclaimer or adverse remark.

The provisions relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report are not applicable to the
Company.

15. STATUTORY AUDITORS

In terms of the provisions of Section 139 of the Act to be read with the Companies {Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), M/s. Krishan K. Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN.:
000009N) was appointed/re-appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company at the 307" AGM
of the Company for a period of one year i.e. from the conclusion of 30t AGM till the conclusion
of 31°' AGM of the Company and being eligible offer themselves for reappointment.

Your Company received a certificate from the Auditors confirming their eligibility to continue as
Statutory Auditors of the Company in terms of provisions of Section 141 of the Act.

16. FRAUD REPORTING
There was no fraud reported by the Statutory Auditors under Section 143({12) of the Companies
Aict, 2013 to the Board of Directors during the year under review.

17. CONSERVATION ©OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information pursuant to the provisions of Section 134{3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read

with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 during the year under review.

Conservation of Energy (Amount in lakhs)
Current Year Previous Year

A. Power & fuel consumption:

1. Electricity
(a) Purchased unit 5,84,200 2,66,531
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Total Amount {In Lakh)
Rate / unit

(b) Own Generator

(i)

(ii)

41‘

Through Diesel Generator
Unit (K. litre)

Units per lit of Diesel Qil
Cost/ Unit

Through Steam Turbine/Generator Unit
Units per lit of Fuel Qil / Gas
Cost / Unit

. Coal [Specify quality and where used)

Cuantity (Tones)
Total Cost

Furnace Oil
Quantity (Kilos)

Other/internal Generator (please give details)
Quantity

Total Cost

Rate / Units

Consumption per unit productions:
Standard
(if any)

Particulars (With details Unit)

Production (Tabs & Caps Strip in 000's pack)
Electricity (000's pack)

Diesel Qil (D00's pack)

Furnace Oil

Coal

(15)

46.08
7.89

89.50
5.85
15.28

MIL

MIL

MNIL

MIL

Current Year

16,330

0.68

0.11

NIL

NIL

25.13
9.41

829.51
5.85
15.30

MIL

NIL

NIL

MIL

Previous Year

16,880

0.67

0.12

NIL

MIL



TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
Research and Development (R & D)
1. Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the company:

-Value-added new dosage formulations, and
- Applying new technology for better processes
2. Benefits derived as a result of the above R& D

- Improved Formulations
- Cost optimization
3. Future plan of action:
- Continue Development work on the above.

4. Expenditure on R & D (Rs. In lakh): 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
a. Quantity (Tones) Nil Mil
b. Recurring 27.26 69.66
c. Total 27.26 69.66
d. Total R & D Expenditure as a
Percentage of total turnover 0.18% 0.34%

Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation:
a) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation
- Efforts have been made for development of formulation of indigenous material

b)  Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts e.g. product improvement cost reduction,
product development, import substitution etc.
- Production impravement

c)  Imported technology (imported during the last six years reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year):
- Does not apply.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo : Current year  Previous year
Foreign Exchange Earned ! Mil Nil

Foreign Exchange Outgo : Rs 767.81 Lakh  Rs. 758.49 Lakh
18. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Your Company has a professional Board with right mix of knowledge, skills and expertise with an
optimum combination of Non-Executive and Independent Directors. The Board provides
strategic puidance and direction to your Company in achieving its business objectives and
protecting the interest of the stakeholders.

As an March 31*, 2024, the Board of the Company is duly constituted with Mr. Ashok Chandra
Sen, Mr. Vivek Manohar Padgaonkar, Mr. Nasim Uddin, Mr. Shanker Laxman Laad and Mr.
Harnam Singh Thakur,
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During the year under review, Mr, Nasim Uddin (DIN: 09670604}, Director retires by rotation at
the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offers himself for
reappointment,

Details of the Director seeking re-appointment at the ensuing Annual general Meeting is given in
the Notice of AGM and your Board recommends the same.

During the year under review, your Company Doesn't required to appoint Key Managerial
personnel as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013,

19. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Pursuant to various requirements under the Act, the Board of Directors has constituted various
committees, such as, Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, and Ceorporate Social Responsibility Committee, The details of
composition, terms of reference, etc,, pertaining to these committees are mentioned herein
below:

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, the
Board constituted and formed various Committees, as follows:

{i) Audit Committee:-
The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to act as a catalyst in helping your Company to
achieve its objectives by overseeing the Integrity of your Company’s Financial Statements;
Adeguacy & Reliability of the Internal Control Systems of your Company; Compliance with legal
& regulatory requirements.

The powers, role and terms of reference and Composition of the Audit Committee are in line
with the provisions of Section 177 of the Act.

During the year under review, the Committee comprises the following Members

5. No. Mame of the Committee(s) Members

1 Audit Committee® Mr. Vivek Padgaonkar
Mr. Ashok Chandra Sen
Mr. Harnam Singh Thakur

*Committee reconstituted on 17% April, 2023

(i) Stakeholders Relationship Committee:-
The Board has constituted Stakeholder's Relationship Committee pursuant to Section 178 of the
Act to look into the redressal of grievances of shareholders and other security holders, if any.

During the year under review, the Committee comprises the following Members:
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S. No. Name of the Committee(s) Members

1 Stakeholders Relationship Committee | Mr. Vivek Padgaonkar
Mr. Ashok Chandra Sen
Mr, Shanker Laxman Laad

(iii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:-

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC") has been vested with the authority to,
inter alia, recommend nominations for Board membership, develop and recommend policies
with respect to formulation of criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
indepandence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to
the remuneration for the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

The role and the terms of reference of the NRC are in compliance with the provisions of Section
178 of the Act.

During the year under review, the Committee comprises the following Members:
'S.No. | Name of the Com mltteelsi ‘Members

1 Momination and Remuneration Committee, Mr. Vivek Padgaonkar
Mr. Ashok Chandra Sen

MWr, Harnam Singh Thakur

Mr. Shanker Laxman Laad

(iv)  Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:-

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has been constituted in accordance with the
requirements of the Act. The Committee recommends the Corporate Social Responsibility
projects to be undertaken by the Company and also monitors its implementation status.

During the year under review, the Committee comprises the following Members:

5. No. Name of the Committee(s) Members

1 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee | Mr. Vivek Padgaonkar
Mr. Nasim Uddin

Mr. Shanker Laxman Laad

20. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES & DETAILS OF
ATTENDANCE

Your Company holds 14 (Fourteen) Board meetings during the year under review and the gap is

not mare than one hundred and twenty days between any two consecutive Meetings. In respect

of such meetings proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and

got signed as required by the Articles of Association of the Company and the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013, The requisite quorum was present in all the meetings.
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DATE OF BOARD MEETINGS

S. No. Date of Meeting
1. April 17, 2023
2. May 22, 2023
3. luly 06, 2023
4, July 25, 2023
E. luly 27, 2023
6. Aupust 03, 2023
7. August 18, 2023
B. September 01, 2023
9. September 27, 2023
10. December 29, 2023
11. lanuary 05, 2024
12, February 12, 2024
13. March 15, 2024
14, March 30, 2024

Attendance Particulars

Last AGM held on
Name of Director Category Board Meetings September 29%, 2023
Held Attended Attended
Mr, Nasim Uddin Non Executive
(DIN: 09670604) . 14 14 Yes
Director
Mr. Shanker Laxman Laad | Non Executive 14 14 Ves
(DIM: D0105650) Director
Mr. Harnam Singh Thakur MNon Executive
(DIN: 07665807) Director 14 i s
Mr. Vivek Manohar | Mon Executive
Padgaonkar Independent 14 14 Yes
(DIN: 10000948) Director
Non Executive
Mr. Ashok Chandra Sen
Ind dent 14 14 Mot Applicabl
(DIN: 09764909) looe i alE Lieodi
Director

Attendance of Directors of the Company at the Committee Meetings held during the Financial
Year 2023-24 are given below:-
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Meeting Remuneration

Committee Meeting

Relationship Committee
Meeting

Attendance Particulars
Audit Committee Hamination & Stakeholders C5R Cammittae
Meetings Remuneration Relationship Meetings
Committee Mestings | Committes Meetings
Name of Director Category
Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held | Attended
Mon E i M 1 1
Wr. Masim Liddin nﬁgcé?cuwe Wiy * 1 k .
{DIN: D96T0E04)
Mr, Shanker Laxman Mon Executive NA A 1 1 1 1 1 1
Laad Director
(DIN: (0105E50)
Mir. Harnam Singh Mon Executive 1 1 A fed MA LT [ [} WA
Thakur Directar
(DIN: 076E5R07)
| Bir Vivek Manohar Mon Executive 1 1 1 1 1 1: 1 1
Fadgaonkar Independent
(DIN: 10000948} Directar
| i 1
Mr. Ashok Chandra Sen :32::1?;2:::& 1 1 NA A MNA MA NA A
+ 057 ;
{DIN: 09764209} | birector
DATE OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS
5. No. Date of Audit Committes Date of Nomination & Date of Stakeholders Date of CSR Committes Meeting

September 0F, 2023 September 01, 2023 September 01, 2023

September 01, 2023

21, DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AND STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE OF
CODE OF CONDUCT

The Independent Directors of your Company have submitted requisite declarations that they
continue to meet the criteria of Independence as laid down in Section 149(6) of the Act and there
is-no change in the status of their Independence and have confirmed that they are not aware of
any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or

impact their ability to discharge their duties,

The Independent Directors of your Company are in compliance with the requirements under Rule
6 of the Companies (Appeintment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and
they confirmed that their names are registered in the databank as mentioned by the Indian
Institute of Corporate Affairs (“1ICA").

The Board of Directors further confirms that the Independent Directors also meet the criteria of
expertise, experience, integrity and proficiency in terms of Rule 8 of the Companies [Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (as amended),

22, PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
Particulars of loans, guarantees given and investments made during the year In accordance with
Section 186 of the Act forms part of the notes to the Financial Statements provided in this Annual
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Report. All the loans, guarantees & securities are given and investments are made for the
Business purpose.

23, PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company has not entered into any contracts/arrangements with the Related Parties other
than its Subsidiary Company for the year under review which is disclosed in the financial
statements of the Company.

24, RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY, INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ITS
ADEQUACY

The Board of Directors of the Company has a framework to address the risk faced by the
organization which provides a formal mechanism for all Directors and employees of the Company
to promote a pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated with the
business. In order to achieve the key objective, the policy establishes a structured and disciplined
approach to Risk Management, in order to guide decisions an risk related issues. In the opinion
of the Board there are no elements of risk which may threaten the existence of the Company,

25. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND 5YSTEMS

The Company has a proper and robust system of internal controls geared towards achieving
efficiency of business operations, safeguarding the Company’s assets and ensuring optimum
utilization of resources. Such controls also ensure accuracy and promptness of financial reporting
and compliance with statutory regulations. The Company has stringent internal audit
proceduras, with the audit being conducted internally by its own team.

26. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, confirm that:

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b. the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

c. the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e. The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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27. DISCLOSURE ABOUT COST RECORDS & AUDIT

The Board of Directors of your Company have appointed M/s Sourabh Jain & Associates, Cost
Accountants, as Cost Auditors for the financial year 2024-25 to carry out an audit of cost records
of the Company.

28. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The activities are in accordance with Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013, In accordance with
the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the annual report on Corporate Social Responsibility
activities forming part of this report.

During the year 2023-24, the Company has made the contribution of Rs. 133.50 Lakhs.

29, OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place a new act The Sexual Harassment

of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has been notified on

9% December, 2013. Under the said Act, every company is required to set up an Internal

Complaints Committee to look into complaints relating to sexual harassment at work place of

any women employee.

Company has adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace and
has set up Internal Complaints Committee for implementation of said policy. No complaint
pertaining to sexual harassment at work place has been reported to the Company during the
year ended March 31, 2024,

30. INTERNAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rule, 2014, the Board of Directors have appointed Mr. Prashant Kumar, Chartered
Accountants, employee of the company as the Internal Auditor of the Company to conduct an
Internal Audit of the functions and activities of the company for the financial year 2024-25.

31. AUDITOR’S REPORT
The detailed report has been annexed with the Director’s Report.

32. COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, your Company has duly complied with the applicable provisions
of the Revised Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (55-1} and General
Meetings (55- 2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (1CS1).
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33. DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM

Your Company has not require to establish Vigil Mechanism under the section 177 of the Act
during the year under review.

34. WEB ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY
The web address of the Campany is https://martinharrislabs.com

35. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere thanks to all for their continued support
extended towards your company’s activities during the year under review. Your Directors also
acknowledge gratefully, the shareholders for their support and confidence reposed on your
Company.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED

NASIM UDDIN SHANKER LAAD LAXMAN
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIN: 09670604 DIN: 00105650

DATE: 30™ AUGUST, 2024
PLACE: NEW DELHI
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Annexure |

Form ADC-1
{Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint
ventures

Part “A": Subsidiaries
(infarmation in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Lakh)

sl. No. Particulars Details
1. Mame of the subsidiary Dielite Infrastructure Private Limited
Z The date since when subsidiary was acquired 2007
3. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if -
different from the holding company’s reporting
period
4, Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the INR in Lakhs

last date of the relevant Financial year in the
case of foreign subsidiaries

5. Share capital 1.00

B, Reserves & surplus 16,114.23

7. Total assets 5146716

8. Total Liabilities 35,351.93

8, Investments 20.02

10, Turnover -

11. Profit / (Loss) before taxation 2,778.43

12. Provision for taxation 753.07

13, Profit / (Loss) after taxation 2025.36

14. Proposed Dividend -

15. | Extent of shareholding(in percentage) | 100
MNames of subsidiaries which are yet to commence cperations - Not applicable
Mames of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year - Mot applicable

Part “"B": Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies
and Joint Ventures
The Company does not have any Associate Company or Joint Venture.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED

NASIM UDDIN SHANKER LAAD LAXMAN
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
DIN: 09670604 DIN: 00105650

DATE: 30™ AUGUST, 2024
PLACE: NEW DELHI
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR
(Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013)

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

Annexure |l

Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited (“Your Company”) has been at the forefront of helping people
rise and ensuring the social wellbeing of the communities in the proximity of its business operations
through its Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives (CSR). Your Company endeavours to enhance
livelihoods and embraces social developments in the field of education and healthcare. Your
Company's CS5R initiatives show Company's commitment in creating empowered citizens and
enhancing the lives of those in need, leading to a more secure and sustainable future. Your Company
has a CSR policy in place, to identify the activities relating to areas identified under Schedule VIl of the

Companies Act, 2013,

2. Composition of CSR Committee:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Act, the Board of Directors constituted the Corporate

Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. The Members of CSR committee are as follows:

1 [Mr. Vivek Chairman and 01 01
Padgacnkar Independent Director
2 |Mr. Nasim Uddin  |Member and Nan- 01 01
Executive Director
3 |Mr. Shanker Member and Non- 01 01
Laxman Laad Executive Director

Provide the web-link where Composition of C5R committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by

the board are disclosed on the website of the company: https://martinharrislabs.com

Not Applicable

Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s} of Impact Assessment of C5R Projects carried
out in pursuance of sub-rule {3) of rule 8, if applicable.

(a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 are as follows:
Amount in Rs.
' S.ne Financial Year Net profit / Loss
1 2020-21 59,63,27,687/-
|2 2021-22 £69,15,98,617/-
| 3 2022-23 71,42,51,609/-
| Average Net Profit 66,73,92,638/-
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(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) is Rs. 1,33,47,853/-

{c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years — Nil

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any- Nil

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (Sb+ 5c- 5d). - Rs. 1,33,47,853/-/-

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project)- Rs.
1,32,50,000/-
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads - 1,00,000/-
(¢} Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable - Nil
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (6a+6b+6c) — Rs. 1,33,50,000/-
{e) Details of C5R amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount | Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the
Financial year Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund specified
to Unspent CSR Account as under Schedule VIl as per second proviso
per section 135(6) to Section 135(5)
Amount | Date of Name | Amount Date of
Transfer the Transfer
Fund
1,33,50,000/- = - - - -

(f} Excess amount for set —off, if any — Not applicable

5.no Particulars Amountin Rs.
1 Two Percent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-section | -
(5) of section 135
2 Total amount spent for the Financial Year -
3 Excess amaunt spent for the financial year [{il)-{1)] -
4 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of | -
the previous financial
years, if any
5 Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [{iii)-(iv)] -

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three financial
years: Not Applicable

5.no | Preceding | Amount Balance Amount Amount Amount
Financial | transferred Amount spent in | transferred to any | remaining
Year. to Unspent in the fund to be spent
CSR unspent Financial | specified under | in
Account CSR Year (in | Schedule Vil asper | Succeeding
under Account Rs.) Section 135(6), if | financial
Section 13 under any. Year (in Rs.)
5 (6) (in Section Amount | Date
Rs.) 135(6) Rs. Transfer
{in Rs,)
1 - - - - - - -
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8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year:

YES or NO
If yes, enter the number of Capital Assets created/acquired.

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acguired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year — Not Applicable.

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per section 135(5).

Not Applicable

Mr. Vivek Padgaonkar
DIN: 10000948
(Chairman CSR Committee)
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Krishan K. Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
MARTIN & HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED,

We have audited the standalone financial statements of MARTIN & HARRIS
LABORATORIES LIMITED, ("the Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at
31% March 2024, and the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and naotes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2024 and profit, for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical reguirements thal are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Ke: it Ma

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon, >

WARDAN" A-17247, Saldanung Enclave. Now Dalhl - 110 029 (India)
Tel, +81-11-40950420, 49905822
E-mail; spesdexd@gmail com, khogupla2S03@gmail com
Website: www ks hankguptaoo ical.ong.in
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Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears te be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there Is no materal
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

R ibilities n Ch Wi nce fi
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, Including the accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the finandal
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

(30)



=:3:-

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the drcumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our
apinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concemn. If we
conclude that @ material uncertainty exists, we are reguired to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the finandal
statemnents, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

R r | and Requl Requi n

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order™), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

LI B R 4
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As reguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account,

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31%
March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2} of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in "Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectivenass of the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the reguirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report In
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given Lo us:

i. The Company has made provision as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, in respect of
long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

il. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(K.K. GUPTA)

Prop.

M. No. 8311

For and on behalf of

KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO,

Chartered Accountants

FREM: 000009 Place: Mew Delhi

LDIN: 24008311BKCBIZ9672 Dated: 30th August, 2024
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xure A | ndependent Auditor’s R
AUDITOR'S REPORT AS PER THE COMPANIES (AUDITOR'S REPORT) ORDER, 2020:

2!

a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

b) As explained to us, property, plant and equipment have been physically verified
by the management at reasonable interval no matenal discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

c) The company holds immovable property disclosed in the financial statements are
held in the name of the company.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the
year,

e) No proceeding has been initiated against the Company for holding any Benami
property under Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act 1988,

a) Inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management at
reasonable intervals. No material discrepancy was noticed on physical verification of
stocks by the management as compared to book records.

b) The Company has borrowings from the bank on the basis of security of current
assels,

The company has granted unsecured loans, but not provided guarantee and made
investments in its wholly owned subsidiary i. e. related party which is covered under
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013

In respact of loans, investments and guarantees made provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted deposits within the meaning of Rule 2 (c) (xii) {a) of
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 or any such amount which are deemed
to be deposits.

On the basis of records produced we are of the opinion that prima fadie cost records and
accounts prescribed by the Central Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of
the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of products of the Company covered under the rules
under said section have been made and maintained. However, we are neither required
to carry out nor have carried out any detailed examination of such accounts and
records.

According to information and explanation given to us, the company is regular in
depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees state insurance, income tax, service tax, custom duty, goods cess,
other statutory dues and interest/ penalty towards delayed payment of dues to the
extent applicable to it

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no undisputed
amounts which were outstanding as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six
months from the date of becoming payable.

Mo transaction has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax

assessment under Income Tax Act, 1961 which had not been recorded in the books of
account of the year,
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11.

12.

13,

14.

15.

16.

17.

a) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information’s and explanations
given to us, we are of the opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment of
dues to any bank ar other quarter on account of principal loan or interest,

b) Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lenders.

c) No term loan has been availed by the company from any quarter.

d) Mo fund raised on short term basis has been found to have been utilised for long
term purpose.

e) Company has one wholly owned subsidiary company in the name of Delite
Infrastructure Private Limited. However, the company has no other joint venture or
associate company with consequent non applicability of this clause with the company.

a) The Company has raised no money by way of IPO or Further Public Offer
including debt instruments during the year.

b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares during the year.

a) Mo fraud by the company or on the company has been noticed or reported
during the year,

b) Mo report under section 143 (12) of Companies Act 2013 has been filed by us
during the year.

o) We have received no whistle-blower complaint during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not
applicable,

There has been no transactions with any related party covered under section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013. All the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details of related party transactions
have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian
Accounting Standards.

The company is stated to have an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business,

The company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons
connected with him.

a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934,

b) The Company has not conducted any non-banking financial or housing financial
activities during the year.

C) Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC).
d) The company does not belong to any group which has a CIC as its member.

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year 2023-24 and in the
immediately preceding financial year in 2022-23,
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18.  There has been no instance of any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year,

19,  In our opinion no material uncertainty is observed to exist as on the date of the audit
report about the ability of the company of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of 1 year from the balance
sheet date.

20.  Noamount remains unspent under section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

21.  There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order (CARQ) reports of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements

(K.K. GUPTA)

Prop.

M. No. 8311

For and on behalf of
KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 00000SN

LUDIN: 24008311BKCBIZ9672

Place : New Delhi
Dated: 30th August,2024
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Krishan K. Gupta & Co.
Charlered Accountants

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section

143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Standalone
MARTIN & HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED ("the Company”) as of March 31%,
2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

AI i

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance MNote on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI)". These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

B. Auditors’ Responsibility

Cur respensibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Mote and the Standards on Auditing, Issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and,
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls cperated effectively in all material

respects.

Cur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of intermal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the finandal statements, whether due to fraud or
errar.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s Internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

“WARTAN A:1/247, Safdanung Enclave, Mew Delhi - 110 029 (India)
Ve : #97-11-49050420, 40935822

E-mall; speedexf@gmad com, kkgupla2 503@gmail com
Wabsite: www krshankguplacoical.ong.in

(36)



A Company's intermal financial contrel over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. & Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that;

a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
Company; and

¢} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements,

f Internal Financial Controls Ower Financia

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in canditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the polidies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial contrals aver financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on “the internal control

over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote issued by the ICAT",

(K.K. GUPTA)

Prop.

M. No. 8311

For and on behalf of
KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

FRMN: 000009

UDIN: 24008311BKCBIZ9672

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 30th August, 2024
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Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Summuary of material accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial statements.

1. Material accounting policies
1.1. Basis of preparation of financial statemenis:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013, (the "Act'} read with rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards), Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued
therealter.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30™ August 2024
«  Functional and presentation currency

These hmancial staements are presented o Indian Rupees, which is the Company’s functional
currency, All amounts have been rounded-odt to the nearest in Lakhs, as per the reguirements of
Schedule 111 of the Act, unless otherwise stated.

1.2. Basis of measurement

The lmancial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the Tollowing:

= certain fnancial assets and ligbilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair
value: and

= net defined benefil (asset) ! lability that are mensured at fair value of plan assets less present value
of defined benefil obligations.

1.3, Use of judgements estimates and assumptions.

The preparstion of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to
make judgments, estmates and sssumptions that aflect the reporied amounts of revenue, expenses,
current assets, non-current assets, current liabilities, non-current liabilities, and disclosure of the
contingent liabilities @l the end of each reporting period. Such estimales are on @ reasonable and
prodent basis considering all available information, however, due to uncertninties about these
Judgments, estimates and assumptions, actual results could differ from estimates. Information about
cach of these cstimates and judgements is included in relevant notes.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
eftects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included n the following notes:

=  Note 37 — classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets

are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely
payiments of pancipal and mterest on the principal amount outstanding,
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Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited
Motes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Assumptions and estimation uncertaintics

Information about assumptions and cstinuation uncertaintics that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment is included in the following netes:

Nate 2- Useful life of depreciable assets — Property, Plant and Equipment.
Mote 31 — Recognition of contingencics, key assumptions aboutl the lkelibood and magnitude of
outllow ol resources.

o MNote 29 - Recognition of fox expense ineluding deferved mx.

1.4. Current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities

The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cvele
e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

= Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or

s Cagh or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All pther assets are classified as non-current.

A liability 1s classified as current when it is;

o Expected 1o be settled in normal operating cycle

*  Held primarily tor the purpose of trading

»  Due 1o be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the lability for at leas) twelve months
after the reporting period

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Dieferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cvele is the time between the acguisition of assets for processing and their realisation in

cash and cash equivalents. Based on the nature of products/services and the time between acquisition

of assets for processing and thelr realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the company has identified

twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current / non - current classification of assets
and liability.

1.5. Property, plant and equipment:

* Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss,
if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and other non-refundable taves or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condition for its infended vse. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the purchase price. Borrowing costs direetly attributable 1o the construction of a qualifying
assct are capitalised as part of the cost. The company dentifies and determines cost of cach
component! part of the assel separately. i the component’ part his a cost which s significant w the
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Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited
Motes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

total cost of the asset and has useful Tife that is materally different from that of the remaining dsset,
These components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are
depreciated over the life of the principal asset,

« Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised i the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the Company and its cost can be measured relinbly. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised
in the statement of prolil and loss as incurred.

* Disposal

An item of property, plant and equipment s derecognised upon disposal or when no future benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from dispesal with the carrving amount of
property, plant and equipment, and are recognised net within other income’ expenses in the statement
of profit and loss,

*« Depreciation

Deprectation for assets purchased [ sold during a vear is proportionately charged. Depreciation is
recognised in the statement of profitand loss on written down value over the estimated uscful lives as
per Schedule [T of the Companies Act, 2013, of each significant part of an item of property, plant and
cquipment,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at regular intervals and adjusted prospectively, iFappropriate,

L.6. Imtangible assets:
* Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are recognised when the asset is identifiable, 15 within the control of the Company. it
is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow {o the
Company and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible asscts acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets
acquired by the Company that have linile useful lives are measured al cosl less accumulated
amartisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite usetul lives are
not amortised. but are tested for impainment annually. either individually or at the cash-generating
umit level,

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.
Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product
or process is technicallv and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable and the
Company intends to complete development and to use or sell the asset.

* Subsequent measurement

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the futmre economie benefits embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates,
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Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited
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* Amortisation

Amortisation is caleulated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost
Amortisation is recognised m statement of profit and loss on a straighi-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available for use,

* Disposal

Grains or losses arsing from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amouni of the asset and are recognized in the
statement of prolit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

1.7. Barrowing costs:

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds, Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent reganded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs,

Borrowing cosls directly attributable 10 the acquisition, construction or production of & qualifying
assel thal necessarily lakes a substantial period 1o get ready Tor 115 intended vse or sale are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale,
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period i which they are meurred.

1.8. Inventories:
Inventories comprising of traded items are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower,

Met redlizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimuled
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary o make the sale,

1.9. Revenue recognition:

Sales are recognised when substantial control of the products has been transferved to the customer,
being when the products are delivered 1o the customer or its authorised representative and there 15 no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's acceptance of the products. Revenue from these
sales is recognised based on the price specified in the sales order, net of the estimated discounts,
rebates, returns and goods and service tax. A receivable is recognised when the geods are delivered as
this 15 the point in time that the consideration is unconditional becavse only the passage of time is
required before the pavment is due, Sales revenues of products are disclosed at net of tax,

Revenue from rendening of services is recognised over the period of fme,

Hecognition of dividend income, interest income:

Interest income or expense s recognised using the effective interest rate method, The “effective
interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payvments through the
expected life of the financial instrument to:

= the gross carrying amount of the finoneial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial lability.

Dividends are recognised in the statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is
established, and it is probable that the cconomic benefits associated with the dividend will Alow to the
Company and that the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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110, Foreign currency transactions:

Transactions in foréign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transactions,
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised
in the stutement of profit and loss of the yvear.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are outstanding, as at the
reporting period are translated at the closing exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are
recognised in the stntement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured in terms of
historical cost are translated vsing the exchange rate at the date of the transaction,

MNon-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a
foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined.

.11,  Employee benefits:
* Short-term cmployee benefits

Emplovee benefits pavable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits, The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to
be pard in exchange Tor the services rendered by emplovees is recognized during the vear,

= Post-conplovment benefits
Defined contribution plans

Contrtbutions 1o the provident Tund which is defined contribution scheme. are recognised as an
emplovee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the contribution is
due. Contributions are made in accordance with the rules of the statute and are recognised as expenses
when emplovees render service entitling them to the contributions,

If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds
the contribution already paid, the delicit payable to the scheme 15 recognized as o hability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid gxceeds the contnbution due
for services receivied before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent
that the pre-payment will lead 1o, for example, a reduction in future pavment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The employees’ gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan, The present value of the obligation under
such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuaral valuation using the projected unit credin
method, which recognises ¢ach period of serviee as giving rse o additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measures each unil separately to build up the final obligation,

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rales
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the
market wyields on government sccurities as at the reporting date, having maturity  periods
approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurements, comprising of acwanal gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling. excluding

amounts included in net interest on the net delined benefit Hability and the returm on plan assets
{encluding amounts included i net interest on the net defined benefit lability), are recognised
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immediately in the balance sheet with & cormesponding debit or credit to retained eamings through
other comprehensive income (OCT) in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified 1o the statement of profit and loss in subsequent perods.,

In case of funded plans. the fair value of the planned assets is reduced from the gross oblipation under
the detined benefit plans, to recognise the oblipation on net basis,

When the benefits of the plan-are changed or when a plan s curtailed, the resulting change in benefits
that relales to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment 15 recognised nmmediately m the
statement of profit and loss. Net interest is caleulmed by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit liabilivy or asset. The Company recognises gains/ losses on settlement of a delined plan when
the settlement oceurs,

« Other long-term employee benefits

The ligbilities for earned leave are not expected to be sertled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period in which the smployees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present
valug ofexpected future payments to be made in respect af services provided by emplovees up to the end of the
reporting period using the projected unit ceadit method as deiermined by actuarial valugiion. The benefiis are
discounted using the market yields al the end of the reporiing period that Have terms approximaling the terms
of the reluted obligation, Remeasurements a3 a resull of experience adjusiments and change in acluarial
assumptions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The obligations are presented ss current
liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months after the reporting period, regardless af when the actual setflement is expected to ocour

1.12. Income taxes:

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It 15 recognised in the statement of profit and
loss except to the extent that it rekites to 4 business combination or items recognised directly in equity
or in other comprehensive income (OCT),

« Current tax

Current tax assets and Habilities are measured at the amount expeeted to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rares and tax laws used o compute the amount arg those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates and
generates taxable income, Current tax assets and liabilittes are offset only i there is o legally
enforcedble right to set it off the recogmised amounts and it 15 intended 1o realise the asset and settle
the liability on a net basis or simultaneously,

* Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on wemporary differences berween the tax

base of assets and linbilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the

reporting date.

Dreferred tax liabilities are recognised for all mxable temporary differences, except:

- When the deferred tax linbility arises from the mitial recogmition of goodwill or an assel or liability
0 & tramsaction that i not @ business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither

the accounting profit nor taxahle profit or less;

= Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all dedoctible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax eredits and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
prabable that taxable profit will be available apainst which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused 1ax losses (including unabsorbed depreciation) can
be utilised, except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset ar liahility in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction. affeets neither the accounting profit nor taxahle profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax pssets is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced o the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available w allow all or pant of
the defemed tax assel 1o be uiilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed ol each reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tux asset 1o be recovered,

Deferred lax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rales that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rabes (and tax laws) that have been
enmacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics are offset if a legally enforeeable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority,

Deferred tax relating to ttems recognised outside profit or loss is recogmised outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation 1o the underlying transaction either in OCT or directly
in equity,

1.13.  Earnings per share (EPS);

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equiry shares outstanding during the financial vear.
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding reasury shares,
luted EPS adjust the figures used in the determination of basic EPS to consider

- The after-income tax effeet of miterest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

- The weighted averape number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential eguity shares.

1.14.  Provision and contingent liabilities [ assets:

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
resull of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying cconemic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

If the effect of the time value of money is matenial, provisions are discounted vsing a current pre-tax
rate that reflects. when appropriate. the risks specific to the Hability, When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost in the statement of
profit and loss,
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Contingent liahility is disclosed in case of

- a present obligation arising from past events, when it 15 not probable that an outllow of resources
will be required to scitle the obligation.

- present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate 15 possible

- 4 possible obligation arising from past events where the probability of outflow of resources is not
remote.

Contingent asset is pot recognised in the financial statements, A contingent assel s disclosed, where
an inflow of economic benefits is probable,

Provisions, contingenl liabilities and contingent asseéts are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
1.15, Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of not more than three months, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value,

1.16. Cash Now statement:

Cash Flows are reported using the indireet method, whereby net Profit before tax is adjusied for the
elfects of ransactions of a non-cash nature, such as deferrals or accruals of past or future operating
cash receipts or payments and items of ncome or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows, For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, bank overdrafts are
considered to be part of cash and cash equivalents,

117, Leases

Al inception of a contract, the company assesses whether a contraet is, or conlains, o lease, A contract
15, or comams, a lease il the contract conveys the right o control the use of an dentilied asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right o control
the use of an wdentified asset, the company assesses whether:

o the contract invalves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified exphicitly or imphicitly
and should be physically distinet or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically
distinet asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified.

e the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the econmmic benefits from use of the
assel throughout the period of use: and

o the Company has the right to direct the use of the assel. The Company has (his right when it has
the decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset
is used, In rare cases where the decision aboul how and for what purpose the assel is used is
predetermined, the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset if either:
= the Company has the right to operate the asset; or
- the Company designed the asset in a way that predetenmnes how and for what purpose i1 will

b used.

Al inception or on reassessmenl of @ contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates

the consideration m the conlract o each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices.
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Company as a lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease Hability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is imitially measured at cost, which comprises the initial smount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payviments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlving asset or 1o
restare the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset s subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method  from  the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the dght-of-use asset or the end of
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of dght-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as
those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairmient lesses, if any. and adjusted for certain remessurements of the lease liability.

I'he lease liahility is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the intevest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrossing rate. Generally. the Company uses ils
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate,

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

o fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments.

o varighle lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured vsing the index or
rate as al the commencement dale.

e amounts cxpected 10 be payable under a residual value guarantee: and

e the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain Lo exercise,
lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an
exlension option, and penalties for early termimation of a lease unless the Company is reasonably
certain nol 1o terminate early.

The lease liahility is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there s a
change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be pavable under a residoal value
guarantec, or i the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension
of termination option,

When the lease Hability 1s remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carmving
amount of the right-ofeuse asset, or 15 recorded in profit or loss 1if the carrying smount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero,

1.1%.  Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between markel participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumplion that the transaction to sell the asset or transler the liability takes place either:

- In the prineipal market for the asset or lability, or
- Im the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous marked for the asset or habilily.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured wsing the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the assct or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A
fair value measurement of a non-financial asset comsiders a market participant’s ability to generate
eeonomic benelits by using the asset in s highest and best use or by selling it 1o another.
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sutficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant ohservable nputs
and mimimising the use of unobservable inputs,

* Level 1 - Quoted {unadiusted) market prices i active markets for identical assets or linbilities.

* Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observahle,

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement 1s unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing
categorisaton (based on the lowest level input that is sigmficant (o the fair value measurement as a
whaole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
based on the nature; characteristics and risks of the asset or lability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above,

1.19. Financial instruments
1.19.1. Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity, Financial instruments also include derivative contracts
such as foreign currency forcign exchange forward contracts. interest rate swaps and currency
options; and embedded derivatives in the host contract. All financial assels are recognised intially at
fair value plus, in the case of fAnoncial assets not recorded at fan value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable o the acquisition of the financial asset,

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in one of the three categories:
a) At amortised cost

b) At [air value throngh Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVTOCT")

o} At fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")

(a) Financial assets classified as measured at amortised cost
A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial assel is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial asseis in
order to collect contractual cash flows and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstandimg,

After initial measurement, such finaneial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

elfective interest rate ("EIR') method, less impairnment charge. Amortised cost is caleulated by

considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fecs or costs that are an integral part of the

EIR. The EIR amorisation is included in fnance expense/ (income) in the statement of profit and

loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, This
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category generally applies to trade receivables, security and other deposits receivable by the
Company.

(b) Financial assets classified as measured at FVTOCT

Agsets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where
the assets” cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCL
Movements in the carrving amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, mnterest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit
and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCT is reclassified from equity to retained eamings. Interest income from these financial assets is
included m other income using the effective mterest rate method.

(¢) Financial assets classified as measured at FYTPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value throogh
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net
in the statement of profit and loss within ether gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Tnterest
income from these financial assets is included in other income.

De-recognition of financial asset

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset cxpire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred ar in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions wherchy 1t transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
dssets are not derceognised,

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
expostre;

- Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost ¢.g., loans, deposits
and bank balances,

- Trade receivables.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes m credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure. the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition,
If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used 1o provide [or impairment loss.
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1.19.2. Financial liabilities
Imitial recognition and measurement

Finuncial habilities are classified. at imal recognition, as finuneial babilities at fur value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
and incremental transaction cost,

Amortised cost s caleulated by taking into aceount any discount or premium on aequisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and foss.

Financial liabilities at FYTPL

Financial liabilitics a1t FWTPL include financial labilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing In the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated as such upan itial recogmtion at the initial date of recognition if the
criteria dn Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilides designated as FVTPL, fair value gains losses
atiributable 1o changes m o own credit risks are recognised in OCL These pains/ losses are not
subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss, Howewver, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.

{a) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the most relevant category to the Company. The Company generally classifics interest bearing
borrowings as financial liabilities camied at amortised cost. After initial recogmition, these instruments
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the labilities are derecopnised as well
as through the CIR amortisation process,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

De-recounition of financial liability

A financial liability {or a part of a financial hability) 15 derceognised from the balance sheet when,
and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the abligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an exchange or
maoditication is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts 1s recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right o offset the recognised amounts and there is an imtention
to seltle on o net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are

measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in the statement of profit and
loss,
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1oL 30 Sbarch UE ¢ LA LU Mo umsbine
Tamimaliy Cunvernito Preferenco Shers of A5 Biockem
vl Limied
TEARLDO 3] March 2122 TEOUMHK Nou-Cunmlative
ittty Comsertible Profirnenes Shasvs of A%0 Biochem
Private |_imiind

Investmends im suhsbfiaries ar coxi

WG| Manch 23 1008 | Fully Piid Fgety Shime-of
W 10wl ul Drathivie Inlisesintome Private Limssad

Rvesimenis cartled an Dl vabe: diler Beeiabive lnemne (VIO
Imvesdnuenl in eguity shares - Caateil

S.H1EN 3] March 2021 - 5 R008HN Fully Pasd Eguity Shee ol
R, |- cach of Teepom lnvestiiein & Leine Lol

Imvessnent in iy shares - Unannied

1LE00 (30 March 2020 0810 b Fully Paid Equity S=arcxal R
s each of Apzeny Siva Educonon Foundaizon Proese Limited

2, S000 3] Warch 2033 1 750,000 ) Fully Tead Eyuity Shans
O s 105 st of Wavin Indin Ll

I i i i almres = L el

210 Compubaandy Coivertitle Preferice Slies ol Hous
Techmdogoes Mol Lul | Y 1% Campulirs Copvenible Mo
Cumuilative Prefeeiee Slaies of B, 100 e of Soyabils
wennines "rivare Limiod v

Invesimemls corried al emerined cosl
|mvesiment in preferenes st - L nguoied

1, 1500 G 2 March 2083 0L 050 0 Mo Owealaiive
Iﬂﬂhm.llbln Lonveitible Pretepnee Slisss of AN Bioachem
Privarg Limigd (Foog vialue ®a, 10 e Premium of R, &- per
share Fallv s wai

TR A o0 O3] Mgl 2037 TR0 Mon-Camnlaive
Uigthnmilly Conyvertible Preferenes Slises of A% Biodiein
Privare Limined iFoee value Ba. 100 g Promiim of Ba. &= pee
share Fully taid une

T Ay e sevcdinil of qpoted lnesanpents

10y Apmegale markel vaise af yuuisd mvestimesis

i Aparegs st of bl firveshnsms

I} Appgaie amonnt o @aivmens i veke ul ey eameis

8 Moo cwrrent fimanceed asseis - oo
| Uisassurnl, icetreaiiril jpikad]
Vo given 03 pefalad puitis
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LARORATORIES LIMITED
Mnbes i dhe Amlime Tmancial i Hnined
(Cmrreiiey ! lasdiag Rupees in Lakhyy

-4

Inveninries 31 March 2024 31 March 03
Fimizhed imods
Snckm-Sarmd 1G2a 0 | REEGH
J LA ]..R.I%p-_“
Tradie receivaldes Al Mareh 2024 31 March 323
| Unsecuned, pomedered pood)
Trnk: oty aliics 1¥T.32 [kl
1¥7.28 13051
i . r falaw from e daie ot
bl i
—_— A gy than 1 yeary itz
Lonihans  Semstocl e ihus Tital
Unilisprmed Tride receivables  eaisidens] good 9712 - - - - 197122
Ulndispuried Tusile Bereivabies - sunsidersd duuhiful - - - - - -
Thingrngd Trade B eelvabedes cousdensd ool - - " - - -
Dvisrintedd Truidie Receivabdes considered doobeful - - - - - -
Trede Reechahles agreing for the financkal yesr 1228
- ; i For T P "
[l Lemtbond  pwmibecl g Zaegus Mede el sesn Taal
AEEls 1AL
Ui bproséad Traide pevereabies — coitsidined gosd 15020 = . - - 13091
Eradisprmed Trode Beevivabdes - sumsiderod duahifi) = = = = - =
Dispuried Trodo Rocciwatses oomsdimned good E E - b - e
Dispuriesd Trade Rueivalebce cousbdrned dogi il =
Cpah nnd cash enuivalinis 31 March 2024 3 Msrch D923
Crish m hand 1.4 1%
Halmores with banks .
I Ersrinl secaiin I8.52 Endd
W2 ATAZ
Uither ok balances 31 Muareh 2024 A1 Msrehy Dead
Fiinsial ileprosars weith lsunk PRI ) 610
677 L]
urromt Tnamelal assets - Loans 31 March 224 30 Mimrch D1
Liits S SR
= 300948
Digher cwrrent foancial sssees M Manch 2R M Mprch M}
By aocmuesd a%13 a7t
Sy e punanly 4047 4400%
#1159 44 oy
Tither sarrent gssets M March 2024 3 March 2
Blalaesee willh jossrrmient mllhen s 1In ) VFTAS
Auhaincio i sopplions 100 3 BRI T
Ahvrmgess G0 stwdl st 103
182534 | DESE1
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MARTIN AND HARKIS LABDRATORIES LIMITED
Mabes tn the standaleng financial statements (continued)
{Coreroey: indian Rupees in Lok

I} Share copiial

Particalars

Acpighenrised
ST ] Sl 23 SARR | gty b of B 10 ench,

VAT AL

Issued, subseribed und pabd-up:
14,56, bk (31 March 2023 36 96040 | eipaity koo o B 10 each fulfy paid-up

30 Mareh 224 1 Muirch 2023
5, e SO0
Bl ] Slhene
S M0
ELL ] T il

T Comgpany has only one chass of shares refered 10w equiy ghares bavimge s par wabus of Be. 105~ each ench holder of equay share 15 entided v vore

Theetet e no righis, prelirenees ol resaricmons nltached b amye shame

leecanvilimtinn of number of s bures aesmndisg s Ce beginming ond end of (he vesr

Eaquiry shares |
31 Muareh 2024 31 Mouareh 223
Mumber of Shares  Namber of Shires
Chatstanding ar the begmnimy of the weur J0.a6 440 G ]
Eauity shared seoed doring e vear - -
Chastanding at ibe et of the year At LA R TR T
Sharchulders holding more than 5% shares bn the Comgony i seld il below;
gty shares of Kx, 10 essch Tubly paid 11 Aarch 224 A March 123
Namber of Shares %o ol Toral shares Mumber of Shares % ol Total shares
Charg lvestchem Private Limaed 1408 g AT.531% 14,495 Rk} 37,519,
Clileot Private Lmwicd AL 2051 Ky 14 A0 ik b
Acrme Metwark 84 A2 AW k200 ELE
Shares 1 [ I [ il ¥ iy 1 Wy
Promnoder Mamge 31 March 2024 A1 March 2013
Number of Shares % of Total yvhares Namber of Shares %o of totnl Shares % Changes during
th year
Shunker Laxrun Laad n 0,00 Y 0 0D [EETTE
Fralul Kalidus Gudhil n (LIEHE, 20 LIRL e LR
Fenjerstrs Hramhaiden Ml i 1A, X0 {1 Cfipaag diors,
5. Veemmghnan 20 . 0EHER S FIH ALDHHESY RAHRS
T. L Mrablakaian 20 L HIEY, 20 LU LR
Mol st % A0 i T HIE, 20 [N [EE]IE
Pondil Dugady Jodhay n 0, (IS an A CHHEES, DA} |
14 ibther edjuity 31 Morch 2624 M March 2023
A Retalned carnings A, | 2289 4320143
e, Segurithes premium 475 d.75
. Cremeral mvserve ENTIHE 40,08
. Egusty instrumenty designated through sther coniprebensive menme 135,13 16245
ditthll S
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MARTIN AND HARKIS LABDRATORIES LIMITED
Mabes tn the standaleng financial statements (continued)
{Coreroey: indian Rupees in Lok

31 March 10124 31 ¥lureh 2021
Retalmod carmings
Uprning bubince A 262.9% JoRR s
A1 ess):
Pradit far the yeor Bl 1 et 53015
Mhvidend Paid 1207, 1) (207,70
Reweasurements of defined benefit lahilty | (dsse) 0,18 Ta%
Clusimy balnnce A6, 12159 Hgﬁl"s
Securites premdiam
Cimening balance £75 475
Chargsss durng the veas - -
Clusimg balunce 4,75 4,715
General Heserve
Cipimireg Bakancs 418,05 450,03
Charszes during the veas - -
Clisdeg halunee A00.05% 1 B
ity igsirumenis designaied thraugh other comprehensive meome
Chpeniigg buibance |6 4 167 4
Add T el .
Fair vabue chanses during the veir (o o ik {705 15480
Trarster from | (o) other reserves - =
Closimp Balunce |85 4% IGL48
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MARTIN AND HARRES LARDRATORIES LIVITED
Nnbes i dhe siundslime manclsd stabsments oo ed s
(Cmrvaney: lasdinn Rupies in Lakhyy

15 Vrowiioss - Noen-csroent

Provisinm for pratuity
Provisiom for leave oncrabeeeni

16 Elhir ioak-carreid abifilio

Clanwrmmesnil il

17 Haenisings - Ourical

Ratruiy]
Cush-enedii fam bauk*

31 March 2024 39 Miwrch 2923
arM b
Ll 10004
2135 [R5
2935 [TEF
N1 Mlargh 2024 A Marek 2013
F1H4 1504
LA AT
31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2013
T djLeR
TRLI0 FTE

*Eecurcd sgoin hypethecanun of finuhod geods; mw matenal, packing moenal, work-ip-progres, book: detm ond collnmally secured by equitabls mommee of propoeny, plam sos

DTl

1§ Trsde payablcs 31 Muarch 2024 30 March 2073
Lot ouisiaiiding dees 1o micro estenprives and snsll enterprises -
Topad purssanding Jegs necredigm atier iian s 2ngpeises wod syall epnerpiese (Kol TTLEG

14700 YTIad
Traile Favable ssvims fov dhe Bnancipl vear 200231
Ahptslamding Tor folliwdag pevinds Troes diic dais ol payvines)
Pt iibins LT
Lisy ihan | yesr  §-f wemm 2-X yeamy Mnre than ¥ Titnl
VERTE
L EAN S = - o L -
Oithers §,7E i - - - 1467090
Ehejiiitnd iy - MEME - - = - -
Dhispuirsd duws — Clthere a - o H =
Trsile Pavuble xpeisg for the Gnoncis] vear 2022-33
Cnnistamidimg fir fullmadng pechils from die daie of pevmest
Partiukars
Less dhon | ¥yesr 12 yrars 2.1 yvenin Matputiin 3 Twtnl
YUY
L BT - = = = =
il 7160 E o - #7164
Dhesgrodesd e - MERE - = a = -
Dinpruted shies — Otfer = = -] = =

18 Diher omrreni fmancisl inhifidies 31 Mlarch 2024 3t March 1)
Seouriny depoalis g3 b Bl
Uinpaid dividomi L -
Expeiiécs puyilile Tigna e 3l

2T, e

20 Provisioms - O urresi 1 Mareh 2024 31 March J03
Pravisin o iy 123 FL5
Frnvision for legvwe ene e L2 A6T

1191 k]

21 owher csrven lishilisies AT Mlareh 2024 20 Mearek 210
Siatuiory s payohle =1y (g "
“uchemice from cusiomers N3] IR
Elaverimsail gdiiiils 132 31
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABCGRATORIES LIMITEDR
Mibis b thie standalone Mvaacial statenients (continaed)

[Corrency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

1

23

Hevenue Trom speratbons

Sale ol pogds

(Fher mcome

Interest Ineome
it Fignm Fixed deposis
b, From loans sdvaneed
e (0thes
Feentol Income
Profit on sale ol Asses
Uapital gaim - athers
Cimin o sale of Munaal fund
Iancaneg o invesimseits canried &t amorised dost
Gl writien hack

Hi!l.'EIILIJIE‘JI.L'l iI}CIJI“E
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Fur year ended
31 Mlarch 2124

For year endud
A1 Murch 26023

14,6 4. T 20 51645
14.604. 70 20,5 1643
For year endedl  For vear emded

31 Murch 2024

31 March 2023

18544 42

12374 L Il

LUE ] {14
LR N
13m0 >

{34

63

4 REHR L

Lz .32

X1 43
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABCGRATORIES LIMITEDR
Mibis b thie standalone Mvaacial statenients (continaed)

[Corrency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

4 Cost of materizls consimed Fur vesr ended  Faor vesr onded
A0 Mareh 2024 3 Mureh 2023

Chpiomina invembary 1. 55H 1M1 21NN 54
Al Purchasss daring the year 5ARRT2 4185328
Clasing invenary (3,023.10) [ EA5R.00)
412361 4, TIZ. NN
15 Emploves benelits expense For vear emded  For vear ended

31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023

Halurics LATT 16 [
Benes 157 T
Ulther ullovinmees 1T, |2k G124
Tx-gratin .87 LR
Madicul expenses 1874 1819
Teraks & penodscals 5463 Tl
S1adT welfone: 13p24 13422
Prewident flend 1532 2552
Trning ond recroviemend cosi 119 196101

17354 2406298

24 Finssee costs For vear ended  For vear ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Imteesa o bxma 4435 [ EE
Hank charpes RTR 155
EH.11 21040

17 Depreciation and amirtisation For vear ended  For vear emded

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Deprecaation of propeny. plast and equipment (eeler md 2) ZEA.T0 T )

1EH.Th 26999
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABCGRATORIES LIMITEDR
Mibis b thie standalone Mvaacial statenients (continaed)

[Corrency: Indian Bupees in Lakhs)

o Chiher cxpenses

Manulscturing Expenses

Loabing and unboaxling

chuirs and mamtenance
Plant and mnchinery
Computer
EBulidig

Freigiv and carages

Power and fucl

Resasrely uind devedigmisn

Selling amd Distribotion Eypenses

Selling expenses

wdministrative Expenses
Hand

Insurance

Printing o statmonery
Trmvelling and conveyanee
Vehicle running expenses

[ersitzpe, tebagram and tebephiome

Rates =l toxes

Rervalty and trodermark exponses
Interest paid om lote poyment of tax

Cither enpenscs
Exclamge Loss

Contribitson owarnds CSR experses

Charity and donation
Lepal amd professional foe
Consultancy chaiges
Mamberslup and subscription
Tade value goen frowgh FVTPL
I'ayment to nuditors

Audis Tew

Ty it
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For year emded  For year ended
31 March 2024 31 Murch 2023

.63 fuz
BB d1.45
5032 57197
134e 141 25410
.37 15587
A £5.57
2726 (e
W3G.34 138 R
.97 4369
RAN L A3
1483 34351
LY S e ] V5 A
T3 25,56
1104 1454
24062 4.7
L (R LR
112 e
273 14 £y
LR 1.3z
133 50 13318
1.27 17.00
124 S07.4%
147489 1626 R
44 4 1193
- 30
1.0 240
1323 125
542352 Bldh.11




MARTIN AND HARRIS LABOEATORIES LIMITEDR
Moy 1o ibe standnlnee financlal sinfements (esntineed
(Cwrrency s Inalinn Rupees in Lakhs)

2% Ties

ol Sratement of profie or e

PFarticalars Year ended Wear eoded

M Msreh 2024 J1 Murch 2023
Currvml tax:
Current inwoms G chinge TiL4w 1 MR 20
Tax iy mespect of carlier vwears [y L]
Delerred mx | mocludmg MAT credic LT ST
erditEmenty
Inwanse tas expense roporicd in the T2613 LATS &5
siatememt of profit or hes

B AT onmprelensiy e ineanse (CEC1)
Tanes related 1o gems recopdaed o O] dera i ibe vem

I*articmlars ¥eur emded Y ear voded
31 March 224 31 Moreh 2023

€ urreml taa:
I'nnes om equity instruests onigh E
vdlier cosmprelensive Ineoams

Delerred mx (inclodisg YAT credi

emtitlement)

Hrmasuremne ode gaing amd [ssc on { L0y (0.E2)
posi ermloymen bepe fits

Tiwess on equitly Instrummnis hsoogh (54T} b7

olhur compird e ing o

Ingomee ens recogmised fn Gk (2142} L3
el  Talamee sheei

Tox nssels

arcicalars 31 March 2024 31 Muareh 123

M- CLETEIiE oA Sl = -

Currenl 1A% 255088 #2133 146,19

Tl doy nssets H1.13 Tih 09

Current tas liabilitivs

| Particalars 31 Murch 2024 31 March 2023
ircurne b [net of provisisn) 53467 -
Tdad curvent tuy linhilithes 55467 =

) Dheferned fax
[Particalars 31 March 3023 |31 Mareh 2023
Deeferred fa lobiliy (DTL)

Exvess ul'dl:_p'rl.';.'i:ll'kln.-'arnl.tﬂu|:iuu1 - ddq

an property; plant ant-aquipment
unificr income A s

Fag valuoom of equiny shares Ain 20w e
Mt Fonils dexigrased at S ol = -
throih profit sl hs

Z6.26 15.7%

Dhelerred tus assed (IVFA}
Facess of deprecintkon smonization 4 1% =
an propenty, plont sl eqilprneis
unT AT A s
MAT crodin entiticiem - -

Fas l.'ulumunil:l'nqun}' sbamnes - 2
Liraituly (E.A5) (22E4)
Lt sdiie i sbumiasid [LEE LY {R.95]
11358} £2hE1 5
Mot letyrred iy Rablley | nesit) 12408 11,0
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SEARTIM AND HARHIS LABCHCATORIES LIMITED
iees i the seandabeng A A
Pl wrvomiy Diadizen Mo T ikl

gb Recongiliation of iay gapense pdl dhe accoomifop pralil malcipliod by Tnifin"s
domestle tox rabe for 31 Mareh 3024 and 31 March 202 5:

Wear enidd Wunr wridlia]
31 Murch 3634 A1 March 2023

Acvauniz pral hefioe s 174381 T255.10
Fox s per BT Act en above W AL 1L H%
X5 LEEYS (Prev. vear = 25 1 68% LA}
Tow expenses
7} Curreni tax TA2A% 1.RBE S0
b Dhefzsreed mx 1k 151 i iy
Gl Tasabinn Ji ieapess of sarlier years I R
(H) TR 1H75.85
[EilTerence 13897 [ELE .
Tox reconciliamon
Adiustments:
oo in respers of cadler wars 199 18
Permawint alisailloii e 4843 5151
Iederred Tas LRE]] {1 58y
4 3H Thalkwanor 1156 4
| rthiers (4.0 & fell

i,y 10.50))
Movemend bn temgineary dliferences:

i April 22 Heoagnised in profitar  Reeopmisedin 30 Mareh 2023 Heesgnbsed in Reeogalsed i 31 Mareh 2024
Buras durimy O] durimg prudll ar bass OO durimg
th vear ithp yirar ilaring thi: vear
the xear

Eeefurred fax labilivg & vsety)
Endiss of deproctbioniamorssstion oh 1543 [T - 449 TR AT} i 1y
property, plent and  equipeen under
income {m act
Wil Bk desipoated ol Uar ol a.0a DLERT Y] - I ] . .03
threrugh prsti md loss
Fair vaharion of equity shanes 21,05 = A0 24 A0 o
CimheLy (18.93) [ GUED F22:86) {171 L] [B.AYE
Lenve connshmenk i3.493) A4y = i3.04% P il iy

15t 155 ¥ (L) 215 i 1L

T Ceampany uffidts tan msseis mnd [mbsilities i 2nd ondy if it has o lepnlly eoforcenble npht 10 set off oront tax zesets and curmont i Imbifities anad the deferrod fecassess and defemed

Vil nehine B picemie g levisd By the same Des sathoniny
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MARTIN AND HARKRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED
“uotes te the stapdalone financial statements (continued)
(Currency: Indian Huopees in Lakhs)

10

1

i

Enrnings Per Share
PR For year ended For the year ended
31 Muorch 2024 31 Murch 2023
Prostie | i Lawssh astributabile 1w TN shizehin liless 201748 525
Basic Earnings Per Share
‘Weighted nverage number of equity shares outstanding during the year 39,50, LR 0 AR
Basic EPS (R 3049 13441
Dluted Earnimgs Per Share
‘Weipghted averaps mumber of equiry shares otstanding for diluled EPS 36,90, 04400 J60 .96, (4 A
Diluted EFS (R {149 13461
Cantingent Halilities:
As Al Asat
bz i 31 March 2024 31 March 2624
Estimued pmaaunt of eontricts remaining o be execuled on capial secount and mon provided B
fai RICTEET]
=+ SR
Diselasures required uader Sectbon 12 of the Micre. Small and Modlum Enterprises Developmont Aet, 2004
Particulars AN e
31 Mareh 2024 A1 Mareh 2023
Tl wensosiot remmining aupuid to micro ond smoll supplicrs 55 ut the end of coch sceounting
vear
- Primeipal hil |
= Inlcnest Ml ol
The weneiirnt of interest paid by the buyver moterms of section I of the Micris, Sl snd Kt Wil
Waedivm Enlerprises Dovelopmant Act 20606
The merint i payment masls o micoe aml small supplisr beyand the appoine day during Nil il
cach necountimg vear, :
The ameont of interest due and payable for period of delay i makmg payment {which have
heen pisl bat beyons] the sqpoiniod diy during the yeacy but withaat adding the inberess il =il
spocifed uides MSMED Act 20k,
Thie gt ol nberest secrued and remalnmg uapid o the end of the sccounting yesr. Ml il
The amsonmt of fierther Interest remoming due and payable oven i the succeedimg vear, eniil
suich il when the inserest dues s above ore actually pasd b the small enierprises e the wil Wil
purpoae of disallowancd & 0 deductble expembinire wnder deetnm 23 of the MSMED Act,
UL
Carporate sacial responsihiliy
Partlculars Far year voded For the yvear emded
21 Mprch 2024 31 Mureh 2023
Giross amaount required to be spent by the company during the vear 13345 13314
Amaunt spent daring ihe year wn
&, Clonstruction’ scguisition of any assor
. U purposes other than {a) shave 135.50 133,16
[EERL] 133,14
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MEARTIN NI HARRES LABGRATORIES LIMITEDR
Sondes inghe I | wimtemens |
(Carremint Dnillen Wegoes i Lakhsg

3 Mobated Parts st
fml 0wt o Halated Forties and descripian of rylegiseshin

. Sulaa T caRi
Uttt lnfresractin Prevaie Linoost

By Yaanpmmeal Forouooe] (EVF)
Slmikhoy Lokl Ll

Hassnaiit Tleikii Siagh

Hemirn Ll

1Fi Rekaiwd party franarsisns:

Er. |Nabwen of Trawarissn Vaw wead endhsl 10 hlanci D202 Foar thie sunr endleil 11 Karci 1023
L Wy Mumagemrm | Lubics nisers Buhsldirs aial Ky Mamagrmeni | Eoilies where Ky | Sprtmdidinry otal
Persannel | Koy Masagement | Campany Torseaned Mansgrmias  ampaay
(KNP Helashy ol | Fermpel/ Halstive CEMEVTlutior of | FersemnidMelach o
Wiy hlmsagemini uf by Ky Mamagemini of Ry
Perwanncl Mlmmageneil Priwisiid Wanegreusl
Ferwannid hse Prrsomnzl kas
Highillail slaaificial
Sail) ! Il psae
| | Lt giesii - 30 L36| {551 ) IREBEL RS A3EAR1LELY
& Lo Begened e [T TR PR ] 104 )
- - I *r!'il (LR i & EEEEETT "h“uﬂll
tep Mabantis ssbaauding af ol ol of dh Loane
Port = Aami Anm

A1 Msrch 3034 | 30 March 2038 |

- Loania v oo eelidpl paribes
D Rl s s Pl s Lenned

3531 0,60 |
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MABRTIN AND HARRIS LABGRATORIES LIMITER
Notes 1o the siandnbens fmncial sistesseney foomtimed)y
(U nrrenygy s Tmlizn Baijees in Lakhsj

A3

L

ikl

Fimancis| risk mansgemend

the Company’s boanl of direcwom hus ovesll resporsibiliy o the csmbBahimen anil sversigl of the Company s msk nsinmgemen mmework. The oand of direewes =
resparesibbe Tow deveigng sl amomioeing e Comgais s Tk masagemest policies. The board reguba) |y secis m decide fie risk msimsenen sovies

The Campare’ fek = i gl arg extablisded 10 Weniily and suadyks the msds Gesd by the Company, W sel appropeise ek lnues and aomtrls o monliee risks and
et b linsdts, Bk iummgheinent pobiess aind shsients nn sevicaasd repalacly e reflel el o maicket comditfossd mal the Compieny®s autisitle, Thi Cormpaity, Oiroagh 15
trmining: am} memagomtst ssmdnds aml procedunes. ams @ ominkin 5 disciplioad s gostoctive ol soamnment inewhich afd soplosen ombotnm) e ek and
iblizbos,

The Compmy's et % I linnce wish the Clompare’s risk mamopenran policies and procedanes, and reviews the pdequeey of the sk manopement irmmework
retutizni v the maks faced by the Coanparey, The Bt b alsoe ussisied by anemal audis. inenl sofs anade el feih cegabac ond il o of nsk memagpemest conils aml
procedures, she resulis of which s sepocied w e Board ol directim. :

The Company ke eposiee fo 0 1Koong riaks sizing s lnsnc ) sainimesss;
- it FiE K - 2 it i ) daekond

= Tigjubday mak - s mede (1) bk

- market 1k - e mobe () below

Elralil risk

Crvandil risk s the risk of finessmal Sows b ohe Compamy it'a cusicmer or neessiorpamty o a foaocial st Giks ool snimmemal obligatioss, and arises pringipally foss ohe
Lompany's receivablo frm cestummm

Tl Cowmpny s expason: 1o credic rsk s mfluesced memly by the mdividunl charreiemisce G ench cedamner, Howover. anagomeont shea ooammiders (he Soiur thal may influene:
e waelit sk ol i ot buse. achisling e delal vsk issucisrod il e alustsy oel coustiy i omhal cislises apedle

Creatit sk b inimagiedd through credi mpprovali esmblishing eredin limsts md comtinunusly monioning the craditeortisges of customers o wiich the Coipany. grants aredin terms
i 1 il eossr i Sislioee Ui gcooini ol dilispthin il Tiad A% V8, she Compam’ uses oxjrestenl crnlin bise el G isaess Gimpuivine lins o goin

Liquidity sk

Tojusiing rigk m the: vk R 1l Courmpuimy will gnecmmter alifTiguivy ni wigcingg The I,J'hpllllnl drsrgnntel wolli 9 Tsancial felafnes thia are senlsl h}'il.:!llr;nll.[ wugh wr asalic
Umnaial wwsel, The Cirmpuny s approdch o mamapging lgusdily is 0 ensone, thal 0wl hese salficien) oy @ e ils lialubties whin they ane due, andier beds ooemal amd
strosyod coodiiivos, wihoot exurring unsccrprabie losses or rigking danape o the Compasy's ropratatimi

The Compamy's troasury deparment i respunsibs far iguidsty amd funiling In addriios policies and procodenes relntimg to muich naks e overseen by the mimagemnt,

The Company's principal sorees of liquidoy are cmb and cosh equivabmes sad the coth Gos that o praerssed from apermfions.

Asar BT
A AL Mareh 3124 | ¥ March 2024
Toinl cament et | 4] DEERAY 1,204.77
Tuial carmeni labiies | Hy R TR 02254
Working capitul (A-R) ab5R11 A4I7L,19

Fulben iz i the Camsgany's expssure s Tasneial Bahisities bavel on e cosdesciual malorits 33 30 eeportag date.

As at 1 Alurch 2834
Caiitiaviial cash iy

Larrying valig L chan | ygar Mo than | year Toral
 Rorusadngs FELTH FRLT0 - THLTO
Frade povabies LATE 1674 - AT
Lithes hbrilites 274,90 274, - AT40

s i 10 Mureh 2821
Cantravtual cash T

Larrying vl Lesy ihan 'Iu'sr.lr ";ﬂu-r'ii.:u 1 yERF Taial Il
Reariin s A1H Rl A1HBH - EA ]
Irady payahles Lot UL - W14
Lot Matsilit 424494 42454 - 424,54
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MARTIN AN HARRIS LABGEATORIES LIVITER
Notes 1o the siandnbens fmncial sistesseney foomtimed)y
(e reuey s Toilisn Fages in Lakliag

deh  Imieresi roie risk:
Thir cospaniy does oot fioe uny interess rane flak s all the Boarowimgs of the covepany heve s fixed incerest me.

il Marker fisk

ket rink s the nsk chae chanpes wanh markm prices - sochom farcign exchange mies amd ineress mies, will aifeer de Coampany™s meome o e value of iy holdings of finmcal
inuermmenes. Tha obscctive of marker nesk manogoment =10 manuge pod controd markor sk oupossrey within accepublo pemmeters, whilo nptimiviog ho rotum

iij  Forcern cwrremey mohodped cuposors 2

Finaneinl asoty A sl 3 Marel 2814 Awad 31 Abarch 2033
Forckzn curremsy Equivaienl smeami | Forcizn carromcy TI".q:i'rl'}rm s in
I Fumees fupaih
Trnde recefvahlos
L&D o = = =
Finansial Nabdliniey A nr 3 e 2804 A5 90 3% Abareh 2023
Fureign curremcy Equivalent amemni | Foreign correscy | Equivalest amoant in
In upees Tupeey
Trmle payahilus
VS 36 Zm0z ] 18 EXFT]
[ IHU2 1.63 13520
C nrrency wive met EYpONITE (AISeRy At 31 Mk 2624 Amat 31 March 2023
liwhibities|
Furticalars Forelzi surromey Eaubvalent ammunt | Forslgn cwrroedy | Egilvalest pmeani in
I Cupows LUl
LiS0 10,4 (20921 P 1A (133,29
Talsl 1) [IBNT) 11633 (133,20
Sgnaltiviry analyst
ey Ammami in INR Semadriviiy %
M March 2634 M March 201%
(2802 | 153,249 [T
| (2802} 133,201
Busgriet om proficeauity (1% strengthening) | Eospast on profiveguing (1% weakyniag)
Anumd m © Samwind in €
31 March Hits 31 viareh 2031 31 Mnrel 1634 31 Adureh 2021
[t} 10304 (133 0.29 1%
Thial .19 (1M f.20 133

Thie exchmvge inte wand by the Cimpuny is thai ootified by e Beserve Buok i i

36 Capinl managomoni

Fhe Compamy's capizad commprises equity shome cageinl, sumplus iy o6 ssatcment of profisand boees asd other equiny aiinbssab ke oo gquety Faldors

The Company's ohjectives wiben momsging copitl o jo-

- s faguand their abality L caniemme ax & poing comcem, 2o e they can coetimie 1o pravide relurmi for sharehaldens and benefize (or otker smkehoddar, mmnd
- i kel iy el s el akvseiuse o vatoce tlie et af cspiial,

Fhe Company momnites capirel using diebi eguiy ms, whach s mer Selbi divided i bolsl egeiy. Thesxe rarios are (Bestraned below:

As al sl
[Paricoters 3 Mareh 3004 | 4 March 2023
i i THLT A1H6H
Taizl ﬂl‘lu" JTAETY 45,250 03
[Detd-vualiy Paihi [T H Dk
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AUARTEN ANID BEAHRLS LABPRATOHRIES LIMTIELD
Mades in The dalone 0 inl s Jenntinuedy
ey Imlnn Hupees B Lakbisg

37T Fair value measurvienic

i v o Fnancial msirummis -
Particulars At B March 2614 A wt N1 March 202}
1YIPL Yoot FyTocl Adnried @il FYEFL FY i1 FYTOLCE Amrigl cost
[Catepory Lewvel 1 Loved 1 Level | Lovel 2 Leved 1 Level & Level I Livel 2
Fhisioe ol usscis
iwesim=ii 4344 L | LREER. ) - 43 BN 2,16 RV
I'radde necenuble - - - . . Lty
Cagh wead cash comimlonm = = = = ' 1743
dhihier bank balances . 4.518.77 . 6:30
Lisasers - - 3550 L - . . M T2 04
{lther francal mssns = | - Ul - - - A4
Tousl mencial usscty 4384 | FL A dAf 0] - A5EE St b A5
Finamsial linhiligie
Beoeromings = s TRE TG - = ETERN
Tvade peryalilen - - [LUTE 0 - - LR 1]
&b fraiicsl Tarhiliig - - 274 - - 42438
Tuta] limancial laisliio C | - 1,7%0.58 - - = LALE.N0

Iy Fair value hivrarchy:

A0k mer Lral A% 0T "Funansal lstrument D leese”, s valus di-iodes o o segseed wilie the corving ssounts pasomaldy appeosimale te G valie, As Blusiued atsove, Jil
Firneial nsirumenis of the company which ore cemied sl amanisal s gpprosmaies ke (hir alie. Aceordingls fair salue diselasunes Tave sl been nisde (or these finmcial
instrumenis. Invgsimends in equity shanes ged muln| funds wiich sre desipmied o Y1 & ivecameni in ety shares s hicl ane clissilad as FyYTOU are mi it vabee

(e)  Rivesrmess i skt Db oonted dt et i dceaidaince wal nd A5 2T - *Seganie fnsaclal saissents®. Accordingly such v estmenns e o reconded s file valile
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SUARTIN AND HARRES LABRATORIES LIMITEDR
Waitek b0 D sEanalal limsneinl g1 s | i ]
{Curreney: lndion Hupees in Lakhs)

3% Posf-employient bonefin plany
s e Imdion Accounging Stmndand 19" Employoe enefit®, the dasclosares @ defined ane given belaws

Al Defined Comirributbin Plans
Cmeribugion 1w defined contmbutian plens, recoynsesd o5 expense for the yenr 15 as ander;

Far year ended For year ended
Farticulur -
i 31 March 2004 3 March 2023
Emphoyer's coribudion fi provident fund 1552 2532

Curmpamys conbrabni b pasd payabde during the v o p—m‘h]ulll Thind are recoeaisid m e Statement of Prels amd Loa.

W, Defined Hemefi Phans

Liratuiiy

The Campuingy hs chofiniad benafit grafuity plan, The gratuity plos i govemsd by the Paymant of Grilally Act, 1972, Ui the o, employos whe o comphetal e venn
af mervice |s envtfed 0 specific benefi, The level of ol provided depeneds on e mrember’s lenpil ol service sed selory ol romcwseed age, These henefis are (ded
with nn msmne compamy.

Llshilhiy Rivks

1. Asset-Linbility mismntch rish- #isk wtoch arses (iF there s 0 mismaich m the durnison of the assete relative o/ the linbalities. By matchime durrion with the defined
bioete Binbilaes, e compuny s sucoesaflly abile b oomtealize yolualmn swings cusel by inbioest mie provenunis, Bones compaenie oo moourmged o adopl sesdol-
linhitity management

L Discount rofe risk- Vanatioms in the Sycuum miv wod (o compsaie the presom wlee of the Habifives may reem amall; baim practi=e can have 2 sigmificam impac on the
dhelbned haenefit lahiEises

A Funure salary escalatiun nmd inflation rigk - Socee pnee indlanon and séacy growth are linked economugally, they see combimed tor diselosmuire purpeses. Hisng salane
will exlben resubt e higher foture defimed beugfil paymonts resaifing o o higher prosen) value of linbidices expecinlly nnexpecied salory merdmses provided s mansgemmimi's
dlsereton ey bead 1 uneenmlities o Sstimatiag has eneagimg ek,

£ Unlanded Plon Risk - This represents oommnnged risk and o prowing lishifig. There is an mhores risk bege that the comany may defsolt on paying the henefis in

aufverse circmmetanees. Fumding the plhan rermoves soliasiiny mooompary's Fnencials and sl Benedis rigk throwggh retm o the fursds macde avaibable G ke plin,

The Fulbowing tobles summarise the compunents of net benefi exy recognied In ibe
Balaimey shisvt far the plaa,

el vmploner Benelil expense an acoaunl of prifuily recopmised in emplayes henefil

od ul prafit nmd less, the funded sinius oml ameosts recogndsed in

(71)

. As il Ad
Particular X1 Murch 224 31 March 2023

L urrent servioe cost i8] 1570
Yt nmtesert | Ineame ) |apense Gkl 5.34
el benefil expense B30 1987
Dhampes (i Bhe presine sadue of iy delined benefir ihiFlgathon are as folloas @

As Bt Av mt

Particidars 31 March 24 M Murch 2023
Prajectod benelit obligation il the beginnkng of the yeor LR R 51T
Ipmerest vist &9 516
Current strviie cost 590 1370
Avtazrial {gam) koss an ohligisons (LA R 15.27)
Benetiis paid L3 (AR
et )t el Wl o At 8 W Ay e e 0T,




FUARTIN AND HARRLS LABRRATORIES LIMITED
Waited to i stanglalome Teaneisl sitenicnls {Continsd )
{Curreney: lndion Hupees in Lakhs)

f‘ﬂlHt'ﬁll‘l Vhy frir vals oF plan assats are o lallsws:

Parfivulars

LN 14

21 Mareh 2034

Ay mt
2 March 2023

Fabr valee of plan asscis ot the beginming of ibe year

Imserest imcomi

Cor i

Morafity chorpes and mxes

Henefis paid

Retury n plan skdels, ccluding amount secoprized in Entenest Encortie - Gain 7| Loss)

Fair valse of Plan sssets ot end of the vear

At bl om plhis dssels

Be-measuryments for the vear (Actiackal igsing | boss)

Paviiculars

As at

X1 MEarch TIR4

As ot
3 Mearch 10E3

Lxpenence {gam) / bess on plan linbidiees
Eepmgraphig (gning ! loss oo plan Vighibries
Fisuscinl {gami / Josk om plan liabilitios
Experience {gam) / foss on plan assels

'I"ilulm.'ull'glel ant | kigs ain [Hhin aesly

RT3
i

| 2.089%
{109

Amaind Feeapnised bn ihe statement of ather comprehenslve Ingoms

Farticiulars

As al
31 March I

124

As
1 Miarch 2023

i-nersuremint far the wear - ablipation {paan) /M
le-mezmirement fior the year— plan asses (pning / loss

(BT.L5}

[Z2T)

‘Foaal pr-measuremends cost (jeredii) for ihe year recsgndsed In pdber caniprebensive Income

{67, 1 5)

(5.2Th

Swpd Deflmed Bewei Lishlliiv Assed) for ibe vear

I*articudars

As b
31 Aburch 30

134

As wt
31 March 023

Deeflrsead et wbligation
Tnir value of plan aseets

352

90.81

L o et e limid] Bonaedin lahiliny ' aseern)

M52

BILETY

Currenl
Man-{urreme

‘e mus fowr cuivpnries af plan sseeis oy 5 peeoentupe of iho fsbe valse of toosl plan sseeis sre sy Sl

TLAE
T

ELE
SHaE

Snature of plon pssees

A% AE

31 March INd4

Aw mi
A1 March 2023

Fiiitids tragad by liores

%%

[ral]

W prineipal assiumpiians sl inodeiermining sraminy Hor w4

Assmmptinmy

pany s plan are showm beluw:

PFarticilors

As ap
A1 Mireh 24

[}

Arat

31 March 2023
Ha

Mttty shle
Deiscqiu rale
Rt ol micncuse i cotpeisaion levels
loxpecied rie of rewemn an plan asseis
Withdrpwal rane o

AApe upba 3 wirs

Age 3| - dd veurs

Ag abuve 34 Yours

LALLM | 2EZ- 14)

LALM 120 2- 14)

||,-.\.|1|;‘: il Hveehil e Fempining kg lvest off emipbees | in vwirsd

[EXT|

® 1t is semarially coleulared e of the lahiliey wng probaiilftics of death, wighurwal md e,
# Assemprion has heen revised by the Conapany hased om their pest expevicnce amd fismre expectoiioms

A gunmtitative sensitivity amnlvsis for significam

imn s 0t 31 Mlorch 2024 is o shonm belun:

Deelined bemelfil nhligotion

As ELC

M
Asganapines A1 March 2024

Az ot
3 March

0L

Inciwdse by 5
hasls palnis

Dhegwiraine By ST
hasls pinis

Drrease By 50
peinis

Inasis

Degredse by 5 Bases
points

Dscnmmt Rate
Dincaouna Pake

AT

Salary imcrement rate
Salary inecement Tape

e L 111 )

1%

14, 1%

551
1,88

a71%

(L34

4 51
HLELY

TR
1244}

L
i}

A RT%
260

250
|56

Sensiivifies due 1o moctabite & withdeials fre net marerinl & hence lmpases of change (e 0 fese pe caloulded
Bemestivmios an rake of eroise af ponmsons mpaymemd, mie of merense of perdioes before regirement & fife expestsney are nai applicshls
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FUARTIN AND HARRLS LABRRATORIES LIMITED
Waited to i stanglalome Teaneisl sitenicnls {Continsd )
{Curreney: lndion Hupees in Lakhs)

Sensitiviny malyel indicases the wfluence of o resaoable change in oensin: gignificant ossamyions an the ooimoog of the Presem vabue of obligation anit aids in
wmlerstanding the uncerningy of reported amounts. Senaindty onolysis B dosse B verying one pemmeter a1 o tmme amil stodying s impact

Expected contribation fur the mext Anoual reperting peried.

Particidirs A1 March 2024
Survive Cosl 41
Pt [ntcrest st oA

Expecivd Expansu for the mext

a0
il oo tang periosd

Expected Nitsive bewelin peyiseily
The folbowing Ismaeit payisnigs, fie vich of the nest Gye veirs o tha appreests Gve yesrs Menzalior, s expsaelod o b il
Year onding 31 Mnrch 21024 g i el

[yt
a1 Vel |81
I a2 Year 08
D 1Y ear S48
T 4 Ve 166 |
dan 3 Year Pds
5 u i Yar 153

& Year cmwanda [TE-H
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED
Notes to the standalone financial statfements (continued)
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

39 Hevenue from comtracts with costomers

A, Hevenue streams

Particulars For year ended
31 March 2024

For the vear ended
31 March 2023

Revenue from operations

Sale of goods 14.614.70

51648

14.614.70

2051648

For vear ended

Particulary 31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Timing of revenue recognition

AL point in Hime I4,614.70 10,516,458
Owver the periad in lime -
Total revenue 14,614.70 20,5760.48
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MARTIN AND HARRLS LARGRATORIES LIMITED
Mgk to the standnlane fnancial Setemeats (contimoed)
iCmrremey: Inafisn Hugpess in Lakhsh

A Lewsis

A s a lesser

A dees, the Covpany previoisly elissified lesss e opeinting of fAmnee less: basal on i sssiement oF whether the Tease oanafeered signifizualy sll of the ride and
rewards incideniud (o swmership of dse underlying asset o the' Commpeny, Usder Lnd 48 116, the Compony recupnises fighi=ideuse aseels el leuse linbifides for misd Sves
i theme bonss ane ve-bokun e shect.

T Comypiny ddeehdid b0 apaly seebption eemglions s slint-tom letimes | For beoses of ofhir uekdts, sibich were clissafiad o operting andae A5 19, e iy
recagnissd righes-rftuse assets and lense linbilities.

. As a lewior

The Compaity: i nod roquiced bo make iy adiusmenks oo transition o lod A5 116 for koses in whach §Eacts as o kessor, exeopt for o sublease. The Cempuny socounted for ik
B dn peoordimniog walh Ioad A5 106 from the duty of nitial nppliition

. Imapacis oo Noamcial sinfemends
U tromsition o I5d &5 110 « Leeses. the Company Bas not recogmsed any nphi-ofsuse osses ond bense Gahifittes. 25 all the lexses ore m the nofure of sharllerm leses.

Faipinses am shor-term kiac (v valee assis

For year enided | For the year gnadod
20 March 2024 31 Moreh 2023
Shut sterm lense ada7 FEI
L abu asaiiy ¥ -

Amaunty recogaised B ibe stalensend of caah Mw

Fiwr year ended | Fur the vear emded
30 March 2024 31 March 2073
Tiotul cosk oudiow for lpmcs 497 A58

(75)



MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED
Mirbes to ihe standalone Naanclal statements (continuedp

(Corrency: Indinn Rupees in Lakhs)

41 Disclosure OF Aceounting Ratlos
A i Aw an N
Particulars Mamerilse Iespnminator E _;le Yarince
e P e - i %k
March'24 Mareh'23
) Currend Rogi Current assets Current fiabifities 329 Al aBT
(b} Bobl-Eguiry Batio (Mol 1) Tl daln Sharchobder s (R [IXI3} THAR
Jeuity
() Deht Service Coverage Rafve (Mote 23 Enrmings nvailable for Dbt Zerviogs 395 18,02 TR AN
deht service
(db Remam on Egulre Hato © (ROE | Noge 33 Met profits after axes | Avernge o 0126 4535
shnneholder™s equity
() Imvanlary Lmayer imtis Lot of Goods Sold Averane Inventory 1.69 223 L]
(1) Trnde Receivnbles tumnaver ratla {Note 43 Revemus Averapgs tmde K744 299,70 T 41
Reedvable
(1) Temibe puyvables v matio (Mote 5) Purclsses of grds Averape trade 08 1374 4125
e wihet expanses loavibbes
(h) Mt capital fwrnoser o (Note 6) Reverue Warking vapital 220 4.0 54.24
(1} Mot profit ratio (Note 7} Met Profit Revenue 13 .50 6.5 47 35
(1 Retum on Capitnd emploves]) | (ROCT | (Naote #) Fnrning hedore l'.urliiu.l Ell‘llﬂﬂ}'{‘{.‘ [TR{T i | & H0
interest i e
(&) Retum on ivvestment | Mole §) Ingame generaled Cost ol - 3 -loz.ns
[roim investinenis Invesimieni

Reasnns for varigtion in rathos niove tham 25%%
Phus o ingrgase indebd n FY 2324

D fov decrenice in reveniie m F,Y 2324

B R

. Ense o deceense it Eambng availabibe for debt service in F.Y 23-24
. Due fo decrense in Net profid after faxes in F/Y 23-24

- B 1o increase in avernge wsle poyable in BY 23-24

D o decrease 10 revenue ad incrense im warking eopual in FY¥ 2314
D iy decrease i Med profid ond revenue in FY 23-24

. D o decrense in Eaming befoso interest and toxes in .Y 23-24

. P b deerease i moeome From invastnsent in F.Y 2324

42 The company does not linve any immevable propery whase title deeds are not held in the name of the company.

43 The Comapany has ol grimted any loans or sdvances in the natuee of loas W premsiens, directors and KMPs, elthorsevemlly o jointly with any other

perEon

44 The compary dovs nor bave 2oy horowlags S banks and Anoncial instionions wideh waes nod wsed Eieothe specitic plrrpose G wided 19 wes taken ot

the Intlnoce sleet date.

45 Tl Comapany here nast rovabuid s Progerty, Plant und Eguipment duriog the yoar.

46 Tl cosmpany does not hovg any Intangible ssseds ander development,

4T The company docs nat hove any Scheme of Armogements which bos been ppproved by the Competent Awthortty in terms of sectioas 230 0 237 of the

Compamics Aci, 1013

48 The comnpany luss complivd witls flee number of lavers prosenbed andar cleose (870 of secson 2 of the Avt read with Conpanies { Resricte on noniber

of Layer) Rules, 2017

49 Mo procecding lhave been mitiobsd o pending ouainst the Company unider the Beaami Tramactions | Probobites) Acl. PORR (43 of 19885 aod the

Eudes mnde thereunder

S0 The Company has bormvwiings froo the bank on the bisas of securiny of turment assdes,

The Company fled monthly and guarterly stalements which are i agresement with the beoks of oceounts

51 The Company has it besn declonsl wilful defbulice by any lank o fnuicial instiluton o govermient o airy otler govermment sullosiies.

51 Relntbonship with Struck off Companies - The Company dees nos e ary tansactions and hafanees with companies which are srack o

51 The company does nol hove eny charges or satisfaction vel 1o be repisiered with regiatrar of compandes bevond ihe stalutory petiod.
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54 Mo fuinls havve bevn sdvan cod or Kaned or fvested (either from borrowed funds or sharo prevmium o ooy other sousees or Kid of Tunds) By e
Coenpany 10.0F 0 2y other pérson|s) or enlitytics ), icluding furetgn entitivs | "lontemmedingies ™), with the understanding, whetlser recorded in wriling
o otlwerwise, that the htleudlaJ.}- shall, wliether, Ll.lrl.'l,jl_'ll i Lu.d.lrm:l.l}' lensl we brvest i otlier persuims bt entities identified in any manmer Wihalsieyer
by or an bebalf of the Compary (“Ultimate: Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarsmtee, security of e like on behall of the Ultimsie BeneGc e

Further, mi fumis have beea recerved by the Company frompny personis) orennylees ), mcluding foreign entities ¢*Fundnsg Pastes" ), with the
unierstamding, whether recorded in omtng ar otherwise, that the Compony shall, whetboer, divecely or Indirecetly. lemd or mivest in ather persans or
cntities identilied in any manner whatioever by or an behalf of the Funding Panty (“Ultimate Bepeflclarbes™) or provide any guarmntee, securty of the
like on bahallof the Ultimate Benaficianes

B8 The Company docs not buve any transaction which is not reconbed in the books of scomints that has been summenstered or diselosed 25 income durng
the yeus in the tne assessments umber the Tncome Tox Act, T%1 (such s, ssarch or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Incoms Tax Act,
1l

S6 The Compamy has not tradiad of invested in erypro eumency o virmuul eamengy during the finuncial year
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED
Mates b the stinakalooe financial stetements {eontinped)
(Cwrreney: Indian Rupees in Lalkhs)
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For KRISHAN K, GUPFTA & CO, For and on behalTof the Banrd of direciors of
Charteral Acconntanis Murtin And Harrks Lubaratories Limited

FRMN: 09~

hK. GLUPMTA NASIM UDDIN Sl Laa
Proprieten Darecbw Drirgetor

Ml s, BR300 VP OO TGO TN 0GRS0
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Krishan K. Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
MARTIN & HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED,
Gurgaon, Haryana

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Consalidated IND AS financial statements of MARTIN &
HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED, ("the Company™), and its subsidiary Delite
Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd., which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31% March
2024, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and
profit, changes in consolidatad equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

i r Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Respansibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinian.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance In our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Information Other than the Co li d Financial § nis and Auditor's Re
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the Information Included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report,
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report therean.

"VARDAN A-1/247, Safdarjung Enclave, New Dol - 110 029 (India)
Tel: +891-11-49950420, 40905622
E-mall; spasdexd@gmail com, kkgupta2S03@Egmail. com
Welbsite: www krishankgupiaca scal.orgin

(79)



-t2:-

Our apinion an the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have perfarmed, we conclude that there is no material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

The Company‘s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process,

Auditor’s R nsibiliti

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

P, .
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- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the crcumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider guantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scape and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during cur audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
pericd and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, we report, to the
extent applicable.

LI A 4
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As reguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

The Consclidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our apinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 1323 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal finandial contrals over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197{16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act,

With respect to the other matters to be included In the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has made provision as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, in respect of long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

ii. There were no amounts which were reguired to be transferred to the Inwvestor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(K.K. GUPTA)

Prop.

M. Mo, 008311

For and on behalf of
KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

FRM: 0Q0009N

UDIN: 24008311BKCBKABSG3

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 30th August, 2024
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Krishan K. Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

nexur in Paragraph (II under the heading of " an r
anal = Do - M — " . -

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
mpani 2013 Mth g

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of consolidated MARTIN
& HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED (“the Company™) as of March 31%, 2024 in conjunction
with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal contral over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance MNote") issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)". These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

B. Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAL. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Cur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal finandial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstaterment of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error,

WARDAN A-1/247, Safcarjung Enclave. New Daihl - 110 (028 (India)
Tel! +81-11-49950420, 40935822
E-mail; spesdexdi@gmall com, khgupla2S03Egmail com
Wabgile: www. krishankguoiacd wcal.ong.in
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that:

@} pertain to the maintenance of records that, In reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and

¢) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements,

Financial R

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadeguate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial
reparting were aperating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on “the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Mote issued by the ICAIL™

(K.K. GUPTA)

Prop.

M. No. 8311

For and on behalf of
KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 000005N

UDIN: 24008311BKCBKABSE3

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 30th August, 2024
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED
Consolidared balance sheet as on 31 March 2024
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITEDR

Consolitlated statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(Carrency: Indian Rupecs in Lakhs)
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED
Coprilbibnted statement of ehanges in ciguity for the year endied 31 March 2024
(Cnrveney: Indian Kupees s | akhs)
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MARTIN AND TTARRIS LARDRATORIES LIMITER

Cunsnbilated stotemnent of Cash Mews for the year engled 31 Muarch 2024
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Summary of material accounting policies and notes forming part of the consolidated financial
statements.

1. Material accounting policies
1.1. Basis of preparation of financial statements:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 (a5 amended) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act.
2013, (the "Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 300 Aygust 2024
s Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Group's functional currency,
All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest in Lakhs, as per the requirements of Schedule 111 of
the Act, unless otherwise stated,

1.2, Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except tor the following:

e certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at Lair
value: and

= net defined benefit (asset) / liability that are measured at fair value of plan assets less present value
of defined benefit obligations,

1.3. Use of judgements estimates and assumptions,

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses,
current assets, non-current assels, corent labilities, non-current labilives, and disclosure ol the
contingent liabilitics at the end of cach reporting period. Such estimates are on a reasonable and
prudent basis considering all available information, however, due o uncertainties about these
judgments, estimates and assumptions, actual results could differ from estimates. Information about
each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements 15 included in the followimg notes;

s Note 38 — classification of [inancial assets: assessment of business model witlin which the assets
are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the foancial asset are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment 15 meluded i the following notes:
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MNote 2 — Usetul life of depreciable assets — Property, Plant and Equipment.
Mote 32 — Recognition of contingeneics, key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of
outllow of resources.

o Mote 30— Recognition of tax expense including deforred tax.

1.4. Current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities

The Group presents assets and habilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-current
classification,

An agscl is classified as current when it is;

» Expected to be realised or intended to be sald or consumed in normal operating cycle
o Held primarily for the purpose of trading

+  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or

s (Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from bemg exchanged or vsed to setile a habibity for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A lability is classified as current when it is;

o Fxpected o be setiled in normal operating cvele

s Held primarily for the purpose of trading

«  [Due o be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

#  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The group classifies all other habilitics as non-current.

Dieferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle 15 the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cush and cash eguivalents. Based on the nature of products/services and the tme between acquisition
of assets for processing and their realisation m cash und cash equivalents, the group has dentified
twelve months as its operating eyele for the purpose of current / non - current elassification of assels
and liability.

1.5. Prineiples of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the company and its

subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024, Control 1s achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to

variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns

through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the

Group has;

e Power over the investee (1.e. existing rights that give it the corrent ability to direet the relevant
activities of the investes),

¢« Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

s The ability to use its power over the investee to affect 1ts returns.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like

transactions and other events in similar circumstances. [f o member of the Group uses accounting
policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and
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events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group member’s financial
statermnents in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s
accounting policies.

The fingneial statcments of all entitres used for the purpose of consolhidation are drawn up o sume
reporting date as that of the holding company. The subsidiaries considered in the consolidated
financial statements are summarized bebow.

Sr. No. | Name of the Company Country of Proportion of
Incorporation Owmnership
Interest
L. Delite Infrastructure Private Limited India 100%

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Group has wsed the following key
consolidation procedures:

Combing like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the holding
company with those of its subsidiaries., For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are
hased on the amounts of assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the
acquisition date.

Offset (eliminate) the carying amount of the holding company’s investment in cach subsidiary and
the holding company’s portion of equity of cach subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains
accounting for any related poodwill.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, éxpenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group, Profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that
are recognised in assets, such as inventory and property, plant and equipment, are eliminated in full.
However, intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated
financial statements. Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the
climination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit and loss and cach component of other comprehensive income ("OCI) are attributed to the
equity holders of the holding company of the group and to the non-controlling interests. even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction, If the Group loses contral over a subsidiary, it deconsolidates the subsidiary from
the date it ceases contral,

« Non-controlling interests in the results and eguity of subsidiaties arc shown separately in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
Balance Sheet respectively,

» Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, afier initially
being recognised at cost. Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Company’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit and loss, and the Company's share of other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax labilities are nol recognised for temporary differcnces between the cartying amount and
tux bases of investments in subsidiaries where the Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differcnces will not reverse in the
foreseeable future,
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1.6. Property, plant and equipment:
* Recognition and measurcment

Property. plunt and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and mmpairment loss,
if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly atiributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the purchase price. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction of a qualifving
asset are capitalised as part of the cost. The group identifies and determines cost of cach component/
part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of
the asset and has wseful hfe that 1s matenally different from that of the remaimng assct. These
components are depreciated separately over their wsetul lives; the remaining components are
depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

* Subseguent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the corryving
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

* Disposal

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future benefits
are expecied from its use or disposal, Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the camrying amount of
property, plant and equipment, and are recognised net within other imcome/ expenses in the statement
of profit and loss.

+ Depreciation

Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a vear is proportionately charged. Depreciation is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss on writlen down valoe over the estimated useful lives as
per Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 20113, of each significant pant of an item of property, plant and
equipment. Individual assets costing less than Rs. 5,000/~ are depreciated in full in the year of
acquisition,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed atregular intervals and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

L.7. Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental vields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the group, is classified as investment property, Investment property is measured initially
at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent
cxpenditure 15 capitalised to the asset’s carrying smount only when it is probable that future economic
benelits associated with the expenditure will How to the group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incwrred. When part of
an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Investment properiies are deprecialed vsing the straighi-line method over their estimated useful lives,

(92)



Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1.8. Borrowing cosis:

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incors i connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also meludes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjusiment to the borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acguisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended vse or sale are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale,
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the peried in which they are incurred.

1.9. Inventories:
Inventones comprising of traded items are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever s lower.

Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
cosis of completion and estimated costs necessary o make the sale.

L10.  Revenue recognition:

Sales are recognised when substantial control of the products has been transferred to the customer,
being when the products are delivered to the customer or its authorised representative and there 15 no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products. Revenue from these
sales is recognised based on the price specified in the sales order, net of the estimated discounts,
rebates, retums and goods and service tax. A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as
this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due. 5ales revenues of products are disclosed at net of tax,

Fevenue from rendering of services is recognised over the period of time,

Revenue from trading in futures iz recognised at point in time on net basis after deducting the
purchase prices.

Revenue from trading in options is recognised at point in time on gross basis and the relevant costs
are recognised as expenditure in cost of materals consumed.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income:

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The “effective
interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or pavments through the
cxpected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; ar
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

Dividends are recognised in the statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is
established, and 1t is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and that the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

1.11.  Foreign corrency transactions:
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transactions,

Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the vear are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss of the vear.
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Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are outstanding, as at the
reporting period are translated at the closing exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are
recognised in the staternent of profit and loss,

Mon-monetary assets and ligbilines denommated in foreign currencies that are measured m terms of
historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Mon-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a
foreign currency. are transtated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined.

1.12. Employee bencfits:
*» Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendening the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. The undiscounted amount of short-term emplovee benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognized during the year.

* Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

Contrnibutions to the provident fund which 15 defined contribution scheme, are recognised as an
emplovee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the contribution i1z
due. Contributions are made in accordance with the rules of the state and are recognised os expenses
when employees render service entitling them to the contributions.

If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds
the contribution already paid, the deficit pavable to the scheme 15 recogmized as a hability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due
for services received belore the balance sheet date, then excess 1s recognized as an asset to the extent
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example. o reduction in future payment or a-cash refund,

Defined henefit plans

The emplovees’ gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under
such defined benefit plans i1s determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation,

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated Toture cash Mows, The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the
market vields on government securities as at the reporting date, having maturity periods
approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benetit liability and the return on plan assets
{excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately m the balance sheet with a carresponding debit or credit (o retained earmings through
other comprehensive income {(OCI) in the period in which they occur. Femeasurements are not
reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

In case of funded plans, the [air value of the planned assets is reduced [rom the gross obligation under
the defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on net basis.
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When the benefits of the plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefits
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment s recognised immediately in the
staternent of profit and loss, Net interest 15 calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benetit lability or asset. The Group recognises gains! losses on scttlement of o defined plan when the
settlement ooeurs.

* Other long-term employee benefits

The labilities for carned leave are not expeeted o be settled wholly within 12 months afier the end of
the reporting period in which the employees render the refated service. They are therefore measured
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporing period using the projected unit credit method as determined
by actuarial valuation, The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting
period that have ferms approximating the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a resull
of experience adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months afier the reporting
period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected o oceur,

LI3. Income taxes:

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax, It is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss except to the extent that it relates to p business combination or items recognised directly in equity
or n other comprehensive mcome (OCT),

* Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recoverad from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
cnacted or substantively enacted. at the reporting date in the country where the Group operates and
generates taxable income, Current fax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is u legally
enforceable right to set it off the recopnised amounts and it is intended to realise the asset and settle
the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

* Deferred tax

Deferred tax 18 provided wsing the balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. except:

= When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or hability
in a transaction that 15 not a business combimation and, at the time of the ransaction, affects neither
the aceounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

- Taxable iemporary differcnces arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probahle that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses (including unabsorbed depreciation) cun
be utilised, except;
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- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or labilitv in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, aftects netther the accounting profit nor wxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporiing
date and are recognised to the exient that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tix assets und liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to-apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability 15 settled, based on tax rates (and tax lows) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred ax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offser if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss s recognised outside profit or loss,
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly
in eguity.

1.14. Earnings per share (EPS):

Basic EPS is caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to eguity holders of the Group
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial vear, adjusted for
banus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted EPS adjust the figures used in the determination of basic EPS to consider

= The after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

- The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

L15.  Provision and contingent liabilities / assets;

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

IF the effect of the time value of money 15 material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-1ay
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific 1o the liability, When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of the s recognised as a finance cost in the statement of
profit and loss.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:

- a present obligation ansing from past events, when it 15 not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation.

- present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

- possible obligation arising from past events where the probability of outflow of resources is not
remote.
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Contingent asset is not recognised m the financial statements. A ::nnt'ingent asset 15 disclosed, where
an intlow of cconomic benetits is probahle.

Provisions, contmgent Labilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
1.16. Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shori-term
deposits with an original maturity of not more than three months. which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

1.17. Cash flow statement:

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net Profit before tax is adjusted for the
cffects of transactions of a non-cash natre. such as deferrals or accroals of past or future operating
cash receipts or payvments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows. For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, bank overdrafis are
considered to be part of cash and cash equivalents.

1.1%. Leases

Al inception of g contract, the group assesses whether a contract 15, or contains, a lease. A conlract 1s,
or containg, a lease if the contract convevs the right to contrel the wse of an identified assct for a
period of time in exchange for consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right o control
the use of an identified asset, the group assesses whether:

¢ the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may he specified explicitly or implicitly
and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically
distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified.

o the Group has the right to obiain substantally all of the econonue benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

o the Group has the right to divect the use of the asseil. The Group has this right when it has the
decision-making nghts that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset 5
used. lo rare cases where the decision aboul how and for what purpose the assel is used is
predetermined, the Group has the right o direct the use of the asset il either,
= the Group has the right to aperate the asset; or
= the Group designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be

used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contaims a lease component, the Group allocates the
consideration i the contract o each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Group as a lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date, The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received,

The nghi-of-use asset 15 subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the

commencement date to the carlier of the end of the useful life of the rght-of-use asset or the end of
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as
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these of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certaim remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease Liabality is imitially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted vsing the mterest rate omplicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease linbility comprise the following:

« fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments.

s varighle lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured vsing the index or
rate a5 at the commencement date,

¢ amounls expected Lo be payable under a residual value puarantee: and

o the exercise price under & purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period iF the Group is reagonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liahility is measured at amorfised cost vsing the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, it there is a
change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guatantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
lermination option,

When the leage liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrving
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero,

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the group does not transter substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership ol an
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental meome [rom operating lease is recognised on a steaight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless the payments to the lessor are structured to
increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary
cost increases ar another systematic basis is available, Initial divect costs incwrred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recogmised over
the Tease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent renis are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are eamed.

Leases are classilied as finance leases when substantially all of the nisks and rewards of ownership
transter [rom the group 1o the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the proup’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of refurn on the net investment outstanding in
respect of the lease,

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases

that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The group recosmses the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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1.19.  Fair value measurement

Fair value 15 the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transter a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement s based
on the presurnption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liabiliry, or
- In the absence of a principal market. in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group, The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best mterest. A fair value
measurement of a non-tinancial asset considers a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another,

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriaie in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the wse of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

* Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2 - Valuation techmques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fur value
measurement s directly or indireetly obscrvable.

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurming basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (hased on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as 8
whole) al the end of each reporting period.

For the purpese of fair value disclosures. the Group has determined classes of assets and labilitics
based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level ol the fair value
hierarchy as explained above,

1.20. Financial instruments
1.20.1. Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

A financial instrument is any contract thal gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity, Financial instruments also include derivative contracts
such as foreign currency foreign exchonge forward contracts, interest rate swaps and currency
options; and embedded derivatives in the host contract. All financial assets are recognised initially at
tair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset,

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classified in one of the three categonies:
a) At amortised cost

b} At fair value through Other Comprehensive Income ('FVTOCT)
¢} At fair valoe through profit or loss (FFVTPL")
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(a) Financial asscts classified as measured at amortised cost
A linancial asset shall be measured wt amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met;

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give nse on specified dates o cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method, less impairment charge. Amortised cost is caleulated by
considering any discount or premiwm on acguisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is mncluded in finance expense/ (income) in the statement of profit and
loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This
category generally applies fo trade receivables, security and other deposits receivable by the Group.

(b} Financial assets classified as measured at FYTOC]

Mssets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where
the assets” cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVO(CL
Movements in the carrying amount are taken throush OCL except for the recogmuon of impairment
gains or lpsses, mierest revenue and foreign exchange pains and losses which are recognised in profit
and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previousty recognised
in O] is reclassified from equity to retained camings. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

(¢) Financial asscts classified as measured at FYTPL

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FYOUC] are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that 15 subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss and is not part of a hedging refationship is recognised 1n profit or loss and presented net
in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/{losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income.

De-recognition of financial asset

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to recerve the contractual cash flows i a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Group neither iransfers nor retains substantially all ol the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

I the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognised,

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 1049, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECLY model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

- Finanecial assets that are debi instruments, and are measured al amoriised cost e.g., loans, deposits
and bank balances.
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- Trade receivables.

The Group tollows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group 1o track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impainment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition, If credit
risk has not mereased significantly. 12-month ECL 15 used to provide for impairment loss,

1.20.2. Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified. at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, pavables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised
imitially at tar value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
and inecremental transaction cost.

Amortised cost s caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acguisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities a1 FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVYTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated as such upon imitial recognition. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109,

Gains or losses on labilities held for trading are recognised 1n the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilitics designated as such upon initial recognition at the initial date of recognition if the
criteria in Ind A5 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains’ losses
attributable to changes in own eredit risks are recognised in OCIL These gains/ losses are not
subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss. However, the Group may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.

{a) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the most relevant category to the Group. The Group generally classifies interest bearing
barrowings as financial liabilities carried at amortised cost. Afier initial recognition, these instruments
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) methed. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liahilities are derecopgnised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost 15 caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees

or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation s included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and foss,
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De-recognition of financial liability

A financial liability {or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the balance sheet when,
and only when, it is extinguished ve when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or exprred.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilines are offset and the net amount is reporied in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an infention
to settle ona net basis, to realise the assets and settle the labilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instroments

Dernvatives are imbally measured at fair value, Subsequent o imgal recogmtion, denvatives are
measured at far value, and changes therein are generally recogmised m the statement of profit and
loss,

1.21.  Operating Sezment

Identification of segmenis

The group’s operating businesses dre organmzed and managed separately according to the nature of
products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic busimess unit that offers
different products ond serves different markets. Operating segments are reported in o manner
consistent with the reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker,

Inter-segment transfers

The group generally accounts for intersegment sales and transfers at cost plus appropriate margins,

Allocation of common costs

Common allocable costs are allocated to cach segment according to the relative contribution of cach
segment 1o the total common costs,

Unallocated items

Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any
business segment.

Segment accounting policies

The group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopled for
preparing and presenting the financial statements of the group as a whole.
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1% Trode papahlvn 31 Mimreh 2020 X1 March 2822
Toin| antstznding dues ti micra enterpriges amd smaf cnicrprises - -
Toul inibstessdingdues i creditoms odhes than mivm smerices el smsll soiqiises (LR Lppli )

164349 HT1eE
Trade Payable ageiag Ter the Nmencial year 202324
Crussenmding for fullowing perisds from doc date of payment
Farikuler
. . Lawn tham § yeur 1-1 yumim 1.3 yyurs Mpire ] Total
yrars
MSME = . = . -
Crihers LeELAD - - - (LR
Dispubcd dugs -~ WEWE - - = - -
[ isprsted ifues - Diliers - = - = =
Trade Payuble sgeimg Tor the fimancial year 200221
Drutstanding fur fullanimg perisds From duy dais of aysend
FPartculars
Lewithan | yene 03 joars 23 yeum Paace i) Tuts|
ey
LE BTl - - - - -
Chhers WTLe - - - [FFN ]
Maigpuitend s - MSME = = = = =
Disputed dues — Chhers - - - - -

1% Uiher corrend fnanciol Hokdlities 51 Muareh 22 31 March 221
Barumity cleposite JRA2 S
Lrpasid dividgngd | Fray B
P peeses paspbie BETHYE i AT4.55

28I 41577

U Froviskss - Current 31 Abareh 2624 31 Alarch 302
Fronmiim for zrauily L3251 1385
Prwwainii o Reuis cncadinmsil 113 JAT

RN [T

11 Duher correns lbilities 31 Aareh 2k 31 Adarch 2022
Soabanory dus pavatiy LA |25 A4
Asdvange Trom custaness 4.5 jamn
Cayermmen granes 112 133

ik 1k
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED
Maes 1o the consalidated fnancial statements (confinued)

{Carrency: Indknn Rupees in Laklsg

Rk

14

Revenue from aperations

Sale of goods

Eher incame

[ntesast lncoms

i Froan fined depamits

b5, TFrom loans aadvanced

e Oithers
Capatl gin - others
Heninl Income
Prosfit on sale of Assets
Diepreciation writlen back
Canin on sake of Mun fund
Incomne on ovvestiments carried at amaortised cost
Cirant writign back
Miscellinenus income

{110

For year ended For year ended
31 March 2024 31 Mureh 2023
14604, 70 51448
14.614.70 20,514, 44
For year ended Fuor year ended

31 Murch 2024

31 Maoreh 2023

LHZ2.H4 043

ER T ] 221575

0,46 1.7R

- 4,36

0239 7523
13.69 -
Il -

- T7.583

36,34 34,59

bk . 232

1,04 0.03

3429000 240843




MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED
Maes 1o the consalidated fnancial statements (confinued)

{Carrency: Indknn Rupees in Laklsg

25 Cost of materkal, wperation and incidental cost

4

27

Chpening imventory

Acld: Purchases during the year

Closing inviniory

Employes benellis expense

Salaric=

Bomus

Other alfowances
Ex-gratiy

Medical expenses
Books & periodicals
Sl weliane
Provident fund

Treintiong wnd recriitemien e

Fimanee costs

Interest on bormowings
Hank charpes

Depreciation and amariisation

Plegreciation of property, plant spd cquipmmet (refer note 2)
Diepreciaion on mvestiimeil properiy

(111)

For vear ended
31 March 2024

For year ended
31 Miarch 2023

1 KR EE 141144
FIERT2 4,183,28
1305 59 {1 HRILER)
4.123.61 4,713,588
For vear ended Fur year ended

31 Murch 2024

31 Muareh I0Z3

1LEO0)T (R
35T T84
170,10 91.24
412,57 LR
15,74 26 %
5463 b, b
[RITRE 134,22
|532 25,52
L1y 19, &kp
1ARG 5T 2AT40T
For vear ended For year ended

31 Murch 2024

31 Mareh 2023

4935 1143

BT 1455

SR 210k
For year ended Fur year enided

31 Mareh 2024

31 Munreh 2023

RN TH 260,
| 7438 121495
46314 ALH5




MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED
Maes 1o the consalidated fnancial statements (confinued)
{Carrency: Indknn Rupees in Laklsg

20 (hher expenses For year ended For year ended
31 March 2024 31 Mureh 2Z0Z3

Manufacturing Expenses

Faomding and unloabing 0.3 002
Repilrs snd mainienance
Plant and machinery il K1 41,45
Computer 503,32 ST2.97
Bulding (IR LT 203,91
Freight snd cartage .37 1557
Porwsar amd fuel Toj.an 65,37
Research and developmeni 2726 & 60

Selling wnd Distribution Expenses

'Sa:||lr|r_ubi|'n:uwsi TR N 1,300 34
Establishment Expenses
Rent 497 43.6%
Insurance 303 13,24
Printing wid stationery 14.83 451
Travelling and convevamee £ b ] LR
Vihich: runming expuenses 2713 1850
Pastage, telegram and elephone 11t 14.72
Rates unad tuxes 240,94 b 1
Foyalty ond trademark expenscs B0 AT R
Otheér enpenses 2800 1466
Contribution wowards TSR expenses [AT7.27 15124
Clenrity sid duntion 1.37 17k
Exchange Loss 0:06 | e
Filing fee - [IRLE]
Legal and prefesstonnl fes In2.08 SOl (2
Comaulinney charpes I ARE.66 1,651 .86
Weltare Expenses - B3l
Membership and subseription 44 45 | 1y
Water & Electricity Expenses 122 1.25
Interest ond Penally L2 0,04
Muintenance and Electicity Expenses 14,87 12 45
Fair value gnin through FVTPL - 0.30
Paaviment 1o suchitons
Audhl fee I .20
Tiax 1.23 .25
5489002 6,113494
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LARCGHRATORIES LIMITER
Mot jw the v il L i il & il alp
i wrreocy: Indisn Hupees in Lakhn)

38 Tanes

al

&b

Stadensonl sl profii or ks

Particulnrs oemr ended ¥iar vnded
ALManch 2934 [ 31 Marsh 2021
Ll i LR
e g i charse LA82 3a 2ARLE)
Tirx in vespavt of earlier voirs 519 1Eq
Defemed s imchading MAT credi L. 4L | k%
weinalement
Imeoame Fan expewce poporicd s the 1ATAR FFTTET]
winsemieni af prolli o los
iy comnrehensi e oo (1ML
Tawiea palibed i it o poeogmmsdd in O] digrivg b fhe veiae
Varricnlars Year emled Year ended
3 March 2024 | 80 March 2023
i ur e rey:
T'nxes an oasnily instresenis dhrauch . .
uher comprelimive. moame
Uelerred max (incioding M1 eredic
enilElement|
Rememunanenis gains and Jossas un o | & i) (ERS
post emmlovment benae i
I'.1x_rl.-un bty insrnamas through 1503 .7
gt comprolicnive incame
1 [£11 5 L] 1AL 133
Tenlnmse shocn
T masel
Varticnlars 31 March 2024 21 March 2023
iHI- SUPPEIE T AEE = -
Current mx essess b 1 [Pl EA)
Vbl s assety P E [RE ]
Cuereod tas Habilidkes
Facticuacs 31 Mgech 23004 |31 March 82|
Tncsme s | oo dil peeyisan i 367 .
izl 1 i Bl 3547 -
Dieferred inn
lrartlculnrs 31 March 2024 30 Moreh 1033
Digforred inx asazd iDTA) {1158} {2aR1)
Defireed g lahiley (0FELY Jis 15 M7
Ll Delerred dox Beliliies Liax LR LT)
Tarriculurs A1 Murch X124 38 Mol 3
Delerred tnx linhilits (DTL1
Eaeess ol deprecisiin smorizain - d 43
an prapeety, pant and eguipmen
nndCT g ure Iy
Fair valesnsim of daquin shaps 1535 Il
2636 1573
Tivlerred fms maser (TIT 40
[Laccss of depreristinn nmorimsaton 4.5
nin property. plont onid sguipment
il gr meorse ik sl
Aanuiuisy [E ] j I3 BAY
Leave encashamen ELeEa] (R LY]
1131.55) 136 HTH
(et e ferrres fae Haldlite:la ot LSt (129
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LARCGRATORIES LIMITER

Mol dw e v i ted £

i wrreocy: Indisn Hupees in Lakhn)

yb  KeemelBlation uf tus expense sud thi: seeounsisg prefl ostiplel by Bulla's

domestie tax rade fer 51 Mlarch 2024 sod 51 March 20232

W ear eniteil Year endeil
A1 March 2634 A1 Mareh 2023

Aaniiibdiig iefls hoRing s, 552134 L F )
Tan @ per 1T Acl om ahowe & (LR 2 LHTE
25 IR, (Prev.vear - 25 18R 1A
T eupenses
L1 Currens 1y 148108 EEEFALY
jin} Deforned ins Eid) (165
Vi) Tasmliem in sespect ol varbeer yours i% L]
(B 1ATE A ERTTE
Iifferenee {A%.56) 1B417)
Ten recomcifintinn
A 1] e v =
Tnsaion i respose of cardier vesm 30% LI
P alisllwances 1042 R
ssrsdard dediuction (HLPS e 200} X821
Delered wmx [%£5) | D5
416 Drisalkrwane {156} b4
AT1ESE] 1130 i ]

(1] (L2

i Muvenire s lenmarary differenoes:
Ol April 11 I:!l:tn“ktdlu Mecognised 5 N Mlow cnenl In 30 Morek 2EXY Beengnbeeid Hecagniacd ba 51 Mareh 2024
i o dirks il by il g, Balamee shee IR (T T during
thi year the vear during ihy year
1Bt xtar

Dreterred ta alidlidy (01
Exoes ol deprocmismnamomisaiios (EEN R . - 445 (R = [ERE
peopeny, plam and equipment ander
WM LT
Mo fumb desipnmed of fair vk [r XS gy 3 = [l y) = - (I E 1]
Earousafy rendit omil liss
Fawr salisto wl aaiity slianss A1 - [§ s 1] - ¥4 - 5.0 2630
ity [T 4,755 0.8z - 3R y 1794 (ER] LH A
Lesve gacnshmeni {157} [ v [ = [ LSRN 3. " (IS

1538 L1654 L] - L1 15,151 PR 1268

The g iiffsels oy assets aod lakalivess i amd anly if it hes o degully eatisceable right s set ofl' cuivent e et and comend s Sabdlites wid she defenmd o st omi defemed e babilites elos
i inpmes Laxes levied by e s 1 Aty
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABODRATORIES LIMITED
Moo b the consolidated financial siatements (eontineed)
{Curremey: Indion Rupees in Lakhs)

1l

EH

Esrakigs Per Shire

Particalirs

For year enuled|  For the vear ended
21 March 2124 3 March 2025
Profit ¢ | Less mrrifurinhlo 10 cguity sharcholdors 4047 Hd o, [T
Basic Earnings Per Share
Wightod svernge numbes ol quity shases outsenndimg durizg il yeur 3, (M0 EURLRI
Basic EPS (Hs. b 11T 1 T3
Diluted Earndngs Per Share
Weighted ayeruge nmber sl eyuity shares outstanding fise aliluies] EFS EL IR LR 1
Diluted KPS (s, 11117 | T8 %)
Comtingent lahilimies:
Prrtigalors As ol As o
31 March 2124 M Nlwrch 26823
Esrimaited mmount of comsrmces remaining w be executed on capiial pocount and pat prosdded for - Ak A
= R ]

Spket- The capital comtruct remaining o be execlid s Bs Wil {previois vesr Bs 900,00 Lakh | wward Nos-Comulative Optiomally Converiible Preferenice Shares

participation ohlipatios
Diisclosares requibred under Seethom 22 of the Miero, Small and Medium Enterprises Dovelnpment Act, 26

Particalars

Azl
2 hlarch 2024

A AL
M Niwrch 2023

The mmmmi remuorning unpuid eotdero and small suppldions as ot the ond of cach sccounting year

- Principnl

= lularzal

Tl wivweii ol mibrest pand By e by mteoms of section Dol e Mo, Seall sl Medion BEimerprsas

Diewelopmmoer Aot 200

Thee et of payment macde demilee aod small seppliee beynd the appobnied duy during gach secounting s
Tl amwenit of mberest due amd pavablo for peried ot deluy in making payment (which bave been paid bul besond the
appaiated day during the year) bus withous adding the interest speeified umler MEMED Act W66

Tl amsimind of mbcrest pccrosd and reomoznng mmpand ob te cod of tlse occonstng yeac

The mmvang of fisdther interess rempining doeand payvable even in the succeeding vear, metil such date when the inteness
s as il are gerundly g W the small enterpeises for the puspese of dlsalbirounee as o deduciibie expendio under

section 23 af the MSMED Acd, 2066,

Corporate suciol cespoasibiliy

Purticmlirs

For yenr el
31 March 2024

For ihe Year vnded
M Muprch 2023

Carens pmanani required b be spent by the group during the year
Amumd approved by the Beard 1o be spent duning the venr

Amount spent during the year an

o L enmruectnnd acaquisition of any assem
b, O pumperses (sdbser thai (a) dhove
Letaldls of relited party teansnctions

147,25 15123
[4T.27 13124
LaTa7 15124
167.27 15124
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABDRATORIES LIMITID
Mearca dn e Ll eel Tamic il aTes Limie ol
Aty | il Biimes e Fakis)

11 Beelaled Varry Hsclesurss
Ead Lk ol Helaicd Paribes smil doacrbpiban nf relaibnesbas:

Koy Mlamapdmon Persamicl {RMP ) Tiseciers
Shitrdor Loiad Lasian

R The st Slagh
Wi ik

Sorephy Kaamer Muzpsi
liake Shelckar Tiquaiki
Clissiki Mlofi s Clikabeg

Chaer relavnd pariisi
Estibthrd b wbich bory Meomaomesf Forvmiisl sed | or ghade rebitiors paandar sigeificust lifscoee disd wiih shem
IrWBARcEk W Er Sarrier an durieg fhe voar

i Barve lnspwiraced & |Lesamg 1l

Ot Bocha luil a1y Graimast i bes:

| Br. [Xature ol Tramarilan Far somrimded 11 Alarch 2631 Var ihe wrar emled A1 March 1827
| am Hes Muiimpeminiil | Eatitics whare Key Tuilsd Kt Mupmrgiminid | Eiflites bleoe by Teasl
Perssnred SLanagrreni Prrssnrel Al mmmzemer
AENEPV Rk of | Poreaned Holailoe AR etmiive wf | PrrssnmdBelasa
Wiew Mlaisigramail Ky Kois Wi g il ul Ky
Frrvennel Slanzgemani Perwanmel Slmegemeni
Perwninel has P i Bork
slzmilivant LU
U Lo & A Leben R rorrenl - - - - A 4B W
2| Lo Ml = - - - LAALLLTY PR TN W]
- - ] - RS 1T AT

2} [Rilanyers owevra peliv o e erel of e v

. —
[Puotlenten A M 2923 | 30 Margh 2z |

| n Fumnasd Awees - Lo Fisscad Aasss
Biersin neesieni & Lo g bl 4R
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABOHATORIES LIMITEL
Mobey d0 il comsulidaicd Twsnciad sipisnionis dosmimmei
i urremey: lndian Rapees im Lakhsh

L

dai

(L

Fimmncis? risk munagemest

The Livimn's boond of dieckes has oyvenll regoasbstity lor the ssobdidhmenl and ovesight of the Giog's nek moneeement fameseck. Te boond of dicecsons s espioible for
doveloping md monioring the Cinup’s rsk i 1 pall The boond regulsiy moen 10 decide i risk mssagomoen acivitice

The tavnapls risk psmgeman policies e establishad o demity and amdse the ske Gead by e Grmg, © 5o sppmprate risk. lmis and comrob o minitr sks anid sillieeenes w
s, Rk morogensent policies ad sysiems one reyiewed egulsdy o metleet chomges inomarker coodimous and Se Grosg's aotivities. The Groop, througl, s trainng and momgernent
stumidarhs anil preccdurcs mims ta aininin & disciplined mnd constrogiive eommned cwvirenmem in wiach 25 cmployecs undensomd their reles and ohligason.

The Gromn's e | musatibprs coemplimes with the Group's nsk momagesen policies und provedures, smd reviews the adagusy of e rmé manzgemen framesock in relaton wihe
tiaka faved bvy the Geuip. The Baand s ulso-ssbed by inten) aondi Isterml avdit undetakes buth cogafin s niltee resdeds of Gak mommgesent camilbs ail procedues, e esuln of
which ore reponed b e Bearnd of direooes.

The Growp s gspowmre o the folluw g nshe smsse oo (nme il senmness
« grodhk pak - soo mons (o Below

< Niguidity v - e nade (b below

= market cisk = sie ni {3 belom

Credis risk
Clreltit sk b the ek o finanelel lossodn the Goip if o TR w o i '] 1 fwil e e v conndorm | ehliguiinig, and sries proeipelly fiom the Ceig's
reeelvaiikes Fium Cusaomncrs

The Gop's expisuie e cnadit wisk s nluemood mesly by the iodividel Chasoeisies of such o Tlumever, i ola cotissders e fecioms it oy iufhece detcoadin
rink ol I culiomer hese, inchaSess e defaull rivk sssasciated il e inidusiry srd coumry inoaech oustoos m opeme

Crradt vk o0 mansgail thiugh credil sppemvals, esablishing credie s and conuminusly moniinning the coalitwariumces of tussomem o which ihe Timup grams credit icems in @
normi ooirsg of business. On scoooni of adoption of ind A% {4, the Group asos ropecood orodit boss model 1o 1s=28s impaimmem losn or grin.

Liquidiny ok

Liyuidity tlsk b vhe elik ttat the g wll enccunter dilfloaly i e the uligiatiung assocated with i finanelal Babiltie, b we setiled by delivering vash 4o sother Geinchil
st Phe Civup's sppooach e maniging Louaisy ks cosae thal @ will heve sufliciest lguaday o seees i Bubiliies when dey g die, under both. sunsal aml aeseel cuidiilios,
wilhul inpuring meaceepinhle b of risking damngs ur e Groap's repatniion.

The Growp's treasury deganmeni i vssponsible for liguidiiy und linding. by sdditen policks st peoc sderss relaing 1o such nks @0 cvemsen by e muspemes.

The Cirep's pencyul sources of liguidicy are cash sed cash cgnnlonms nid the cash e thai 18 genomidd from opermtions.

Al Ao
ERaLary A1 March 2024 1 March 2623
Trind currees agsess (A} A7 8617 F3,151 08
Vol ¢ ureend fiabribiies (H) !.'Ellﬁ.li_il 20304
Wi T 54,5408 -5!,&3‘1—"
Fuollowing iv tho Lpoups apusure fo Enancizl Behilities had sg (e contractunl moturity @ 8l peportiog daly,
Particular. A at ¥ March T
{-‘-_mm vash Tl
Currylmg valne Lgss than | vear Mlare thian | yesr “Tutal
Hosimirmbivgs TRLTH TRI. TN - T2
Traile pinssinles | E3 4 1Ean4n = 1 5240
Lihor linhilities HH21 T 2dH) IS
Tartienlars A 8d X March 20X
Camirnerual canl vy
Carryizg valse Less-than | vear Mlore Hian | year Tastal_
Hesrermingn L] FI R - I
Tk pavivarirles. TN STL6Y = 7104
|Cthes linbilives A4 TT 3077 24.00 45477
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABOHATORIES LIMITEL
oes o (b cossuliduied Mmamciad sdaignients (o i
i urremey: lndian Rapees bm Lakhisi

1 Twieresd ple sink:
The Ciriagy dives dd Taoe ainy Uiberesn e Al o Al tae Womomiags o the eomuaiy have g fied seciet e

{d)  WEerked Fsk

Market sk = the roek thul changey with miskes peoces — suek i [orrgn exchange moes wnd seerest ivs, wall sdbect the Cempuny’s income ar the vilue of fis holdings ol finacisl
tstrumimis. Thi chgocra nf ko ms managemenit i bomamage and contonl mackst risk esposancs within e coplabls parmmarico, while optimisvng the rium

i1 Foreign corressy ushedgod evprse s ;

Fliianelal asicty F b 30 Afareh T84 A8t 31 Mareh 2024
Fuorulgn currescy Equivabend smonwt | Forelgn carreney | Equivabent smoant n
ik Fuigeis Flijieis
Vrade roceivaides
L1511 = - - .
Financial lishilisies i v ab 0 March 1004 - A mt 81 March 2028
Farelgn L"I.Ir.l'!I;::r“ [ -l.ql:ﬁ"ﬂ:nl BT .lill'ﬂ:ﬂl il'mn:gr" Faquin alent amenni in
I rupees THreey
Teole oy shifis
LI (L] 2R.u2 L£3 11124
03 W Lb3 11320
L urrenicy nlic set expoasre inssel - Asar 30 Marek 124 Ao w31 Murch 2025
Habiliries )
it Furuign curremes Fapuivakens ammist Farvign carreney Fagribvplent amsant in
I s FufeEs
LE0 14118 [l ] (LAY LR
| Tt ELALTT) [+ E M) HLEN [ILLE]
seasiiidy mnalysi
Correney Ammiuni in IR ﬁ_u'l'_;!gtib b
21 March 2024 A1 March 2023
THR [ [ K]l [N
[ (B AL 133,30}
Imipast am prafitequity (1% vrengihening) Impact nm profiteguity 1% weskrning |
AT i Ammiikar in ¢
Y1 Abarch M4 A1 March 201V M Mareh 224 A1 Miarch rorl
Ll LE LIk [¥3] L3 |
sl (0.13) 113} 0.zv JE:]

Nic ischmnge mie wsed b the Uompaioy & that noodiod By the Bosowe Hank of bl

AT Capital pmnagemesd

The € rmqinyy capesil camprived ity aheine i, somiha i e ststconest of prlic s s i) ot cquily st bisb magns nhlas
The Coarany's ebaeotives, whe mbsaging cagiul ane w

- anfegusnl dief abalivy © ceiiliig 2 & polig coscern, = Thatl diey G coiies 0 predide seguin e shinsssde s and henefis G oiier wabsliolder, wnd
- ridsstiniin g opriensl capiinl amseiue wnedeee the cos ol caplial.

The Comguny mscniors: copilal sming debi-smquily maio, which iz nel debd divided by 1eial equiny, These msics are (Maenvied belor:

S il Akl
sty A8 March 21 11 March 121
M b THETS EIEESY
Tutad equiy 3,206.95 59,338 T
Dehd-equlty ratin A8 [1X=]]
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SEABRTES ANTERLAHAS LAneia toes LISTED
Septe 10 whe cosa il it Tinanedal simieienis {oamringal )
A€ wrromey Tmillan Hapees in Lakhs|

3 Falr valun messnmesis

4) s of ftscll et

|Ihlrd=-l|-'l Avai M Mpch 2024 An pe S8 Mjarch 11
1 T | FTo PVIOET | Aumrtised sos Lanish FyToecl FYTIRCT SummirEnel cval
['L'_ﬂ"Ll‘} Ll | L Lned Leved | 1 Laved 1 Lesel | Lavel ¥ Levell ] Lowel 2
Pkl ssiiis |
b - LR OHEY 1,141 50 - ] ek 18T 44
Tk recrnabin - - VT3 vl
{-aal) s canh wprvalariy - - - Hnd - - - RIAT
e Fbenk hoyleacss - - - A A1 E Wy - - - .30
ffe—— = E E H Z = = B A
i (el st I | e e ALETEL > : = _{ il
s sl vy B S ST 11 SHEEI - ) AT AR
Financial Hahilikes
A dogs - - THI TG - i - Al
Trske praiobies . L LR . . e
Cnhar s bl abisiics - = 241 = " = A5
Tl Bnanicial Tabdlilies | = 1 - 4, 77100 - - - 1313

il Fodr vailiss hiecarchil
A e Il 250100 "Virgneinl b Ekmabana”, Triv vabye Bianes g el s ered whan sk ey g s rermas iy ppec i e foir vehon. d - ilpeimaied abened, 5 B il sorernars il
ibr oy whick ame ranicd g amrisnd and sppraazreies the oy valae Accondngly (e vaber S ke ke noi fers roake S theee lzaesd iminseeps. bevsimrsie @ sy shapes aid mios| hnds
bl e desbgnared 6 PYTPL & invesdien in ey i wked de dsssfed o FVTOC ] sie o e vl
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABGRATORIES LIMITED
Mabes o the convalidated NMuascial seafomenis (esntinsed)
{Corroney: Indinn Bapees fn Lalkbsd

3

Past-employment bemefit ploms
e per Indinn Aocounting Smndacd 19° Fmplovee Bencfin®, the disginsmes as definel are given balow.

A D fimed Contrilutisn Flans
Cantribution: sa defined contributon plans, recommised 25 expense fioc the veer & under:

For venr ended For year ended
iahami 31 March 3024 31 Mureh 2023
Frnploer contribition e provident liand 153 =482

Cirv'y comilibitiom poid pugahlc during the seato prosodenl Tl e pecopmed im e Sttt of Profic sl Liss

#, Defimed Benelil Plans

Liratubly

The Leroup has dofined benctit gramney pline The gromay plan s governed by the Paoymens of Gmoury Ace 1972 Under the oot enghyee who has conspleted five years of
sapyie i eniEled sy Hpt\'!ﬁ: Bl The level of e prosided dipends on e nsiber’s g of seoviee and <alery o iefireiwe of dee. Thasse beoelite are Sl avsith
Al EAUET e GOy

Linbitity Misks
1. Assot-1lahilbiy mismatel k- Rick which ances of 5o B 8 mismaioh in the dumion of the assee relstive ok (abilivies By maching duration with the detimed
benefit linhidities, i5e compmy & sweeessfully shie 1o nevimlue valwation swinps coused by Taie Hence comgpumies s encommped o sdapt nssel.

Hshilsly manzgemenl.

A Dlscaunt rude rishe Varisives in the Bseuunt tile aved wo compuse iy prevent vilie ol the labilives mey seem sivadl, bui in pracelse dun heve o agnifivun poet on
the defmed bengfin linhdlities

A Future salary escalitbon and infurion sk - Sineo pece alaion and asliry gl soe linked economieally, ibey e comhined [ disclosore pumpases. Riing
salancs will ofien resli m highee haue dolioed benefln poymenss resulling in a higher presem valee of labdites especially anaspected salary woeaies provided @
mmzemeni'’s dicretion may kead o evcerfamiies in csfimming 1his mereasing risk

d. Unfunded Plan Risk - This pepresaeens unennnngod sk snd @ geoswing Hobiliny, Thene s mn mberent risk here thin the compasy may defaul o poyimg the heneline in
nilverse circumatnnees. Pumbing the plan remoies volntilicy in compuny's finenciad nmnd alsa bepefie risk throughs recurn op the funds waide availablz far the plan,

The Followiny inldes sumanarive the componvnds of net benefid cxpesse recogmived in the sintvment of prefil nod bess, ihe faoded sininy apd amoeasts reoegised
in hafapes sheet For the plan,

el e Iseni il oxpend o dedannt of pranuity wised im e plited bonefid esponses

I RLE Ry
Farfon Ny 31 Marchs 2024 1 March 3023
Liirment vy v wl 13,90
Pat interust {|meme) Fupensd, D] 330
et enefit exprnse 12,61 1507
Chinmpes bn the prosest vakng of the defined hemelit obligathen are g folbows @

. As ot Mo
it 31 WMareh 3004 21 Mareh W23
rejecied heneflt ahilgatius o the beginming of the year T 520
e cid (0] ER
Currenl serace sl 591 [E5
Actuarinl {gam i foss om obdipotions 1h7.15) 1337
Benefits paid [ 4001y
Preseal vofue of shiigation of the eod of the vear el ‘MR
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABGRATORIES LIMITED
Mabes o the convalidated NMuascial seafomenis (esntinsed)
JCrroney: Dodian Rapees fn Lakbe)

Champes in the fair valoe of plam asseis are as indlows:

Partboula M pe As @l
i A1 Mareh 20514 1 Mareh H123
Fair yolwe sl plan osaets ail the beginwing of ibe vear - -
Incerest incoane - -
Rl - =
Mfaritaabely b ot and Ladiss - .
Bhenelils paid - -
Heturn on pan asseis, evclnbng smosnt recogneed n [nwerest [oeome = Gom ¢ {Lassk - —
|!-'*Ir sodug &l Plan assers ol god of the veas = =
Actiial rettirn o plon assets
fie-memmrements far the year | Aciuoris] (gaink | fess)
A il Ayl
3
Iartsculars 31 Margh 2014 31 March 2023
Euperiemce mbusrmenies gain (| lisa ] oinplan labilties AT My [ ]|
Ditiscrpraprhie assemptions paln / {1nss3 o0 plan labilicies = -
Financial ssunsgibcns gain ¢ (loss | on plan lahikes 0.4 [EN B
Experience { gaing ¢ loss on plan ossets - .
Financial i/ et o plai arses = -
Ameunt cecugnived u the sistement of thur com prebendy: nenme
As af Al
T"ariicila
T 31 Mareh 2004 31 March 13
Ree-cocasunomenl for the yosr - ohligation (gainb o \RT15) {3271
Roomoasaromeni for the year - plon wssets (prn  loss - -
|'1'||l.ll re-mg sy cal | {ewedity far the year revagnisel is other simprihensive Incami TENET {32
Myl Dolincd Beoefid Liahiliovd Assetd for the voor
Ak As
bticindds 31 Marvhs 2034 30 March 23
U heFind bemaefid oblipnison L Ll K]
izt value of plan assels - -
Chashing gt ditined Bimefl Habidley i 34,51 LM
Lmrremt 12.581 3155
™o -Emrre g M o ek |
Tl s eatngerles of gilan sssets as o gwrceatage of e Blr vuliic sl 1sisl plan s see as folbows:
As e A ar
Nodare of plon nssels 31 Murch 2624 2 BMarch X023
Funds manaped by inmarer [ 1%
The principal sssumprive: used in dulermindeg gratuity ehiigitions for the Gosup™s plan are shiown Belons
AssinHinng
Particulars Al o
A1 March 2024 21 March 2123
h
Murinloy mblc JLALME (201 2- 140 TALM (1012 14§
Dhsoonunl ratc T LI TN
FRuxicoiff mcroase incompensatime lovels LN L[
Experecd s of retum oo plon ussots LN DY
Withdrires] rage £
A mpio M ydars LA (LR L
Apz3] - dd yeun 4,30, TR (Lo
Ap= above £ vears AL Utdlte
[Expecied Everape remalimng working lives of empleeess {in years) I 1501] 1141
* It is actmarmlly calculoied term of the labality usnp probabilicies of death, withdrawal and retiremens,
# Ansummoan has hees revised by the Group hased on their past experience and fulsine expeoisdions
LA T DAL DR Lo T D P L ETRIRAL T b BT E LD s
Bvlimed Bonefid abiigetion
As af Rl
1 Ntarch 24 31 Marek 2|
Assummptions # =i ek 2003
Increase by S Decremse by S0 Incresse by 50 basis | Decresze by 50 basis
. - LY L JBigs prinie L) polats
Litscomnt Kite
i Bsonunn Kot T M % B T1% TR AT
AaEmanni JU T ip B4 rz.ﬂj a0
Sakary iscremenl rale
Salrry metaTmenl mh 5 50% 4501 A0 4 Hi'y
Aiduii .80 [N .55 [l

Somirviies o i murnlay & withdreabs e oot meseoul & henee fmpact of chimpe due o ik oot culcubised.
Seorwsifivitics o8 mie of incroase of postines m payvment, mao nf increaso of ponsions befone retiroment & Bfo expoctancy are oot oppéicoble
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABGRATORIES LIMITED
Mabes o the convalidated NMuascial seafomenis (esntinsed)
{Corroney: Indinn Bapees fn Lalkbsd

Sernitiviey wmbyels ivdiceics e fidhanee oF @ netsoneble e o cofain significan) sssmmpliviss on e ouleers of e Prowan vahic of oldigntion ol aids
uralersinmbing the ey of reparizd nmemn. Semicivine anabyes is doic by varsnp e parmmecer ai s time aoed soulying ies mpec.

Expreted contriSwtion for the nexe Asnuul reporting period,

Iarticalars 20 March 2024
Sorvey Cos 441
MNet |eerent Cosé 24%

Eapecesd bxpense {or the next

et e 650

Eapsected fiitwre heneli pavisenis

Thi fallossamy benefil pavments, for each of ibe oot five sears and dhe nggresste Gve vears thereadber, are expected bo b pand!
Exproted hemelir

Year ending 3 Morch 2024 |pasyment poended o i

nenrest thousnmd
ik 1 ¥ear 12;41
[ 1 I Yenr .04 |
23 Year .0
1w 4 Wear (K
A 1t 5 Yiar 145
5 ik Yo 1.33
1 Wear crwanls 15F
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED
Motes to the consolidated financial statements (continued )
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

40 Revenue from contracts with customers

A, Revenue streams

Particulars

For yvear ended
31 March 2024

For the vear ended
31 March 2023

Revenue from operations

31 March 2024

Sale of poods 14,614.70 M A51648
14.614.70 20.,510.48
Particulars For year ended For the vear ended

31 March 2023

Timing of revenue recognition

AL point in fime 14,614.70 ML516.48
Lrver the period n time - -
Tutal revenue 14.614.70 20,516.48
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MARTIN AND HARRES | ARCHRATORIES LIMITED
Notus i (e cosanlids el Aasncial statvmants {enatinud)
(Cwirenest Dndian Hapees in Lakhiz)

Al exses

A s ey

As w lessen, doe Caroip previcusly Clissified leases as operazing or finanoe |leses bised o i aparssreen of whether the bease ransfered signifvamly all of the risks s reands
mickdemital 1o (e exhip of the undedving asset 10 the Group. Under Ind A8 1ES, the Jroun rocogmdses ripli-ofuse asscis sed lemse liahilices for most Joascs - e these fenses ame
b shacl

The Cirnup devided woapply recognieon exempusme s shioa-wemm kees

H, An s lpssr
The Crnan iw ok weguareid 1o minkee seny acjussmemts on wrunstuo wp il A5 T fr T mowdach o0 mets o g bessaor, engup, for oossb-Bese. The Ciroup aceomted for s Teasazs m
accondunce with kad A5 116 frou the dme of mitial splicotion

. lmpucts om fimascial siniements
i rransation to bnd AS 116 - Leases the CGiroop has not recopnissd any right ol e ol and lense linbilines, as all ihe lzwses are o oile omuore of shon-iemm leases

Frpenses on short-term beases | low value ascets

For year ended|  Fur the year ended
31 Miarch 2624 31 Miareh 2053
Shurl-temm lisae 5497 4140
- valuwe dsseiu - a

Amanei peeogrlsed in the stacement of tash M

Foet yvmr oidodd|  Fod the voar endisl

31 Muarch 2834 21 Muarch 2023
Testal cash outflow for benes 54 57 4340

A m Lasonr
Kemal income rocogniscd by the compamy during 11 Marcls 24024 was B, 8063 Lakh 3 March 20235 : Reo 7523 Lokb) mnid ws inchndef m other moome®

The fullwing tabde sets out o ooy onehysis of lese poysenis, showomy the unidSseonmicd leise payencms s be recerved afier the reporting doie.

A ai hg i

Mlatirity amakvals 31 Minrch 2824 31 Minrch 2623

Wowwrvnbile in b i v viar (0] TEAHI

Bavuivihle aveesn oo aml five peoms TNT |57 41F
Recwivihle afber mane tham fve years - -

Tl = .56 2 Ail
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MAKHTIN AND BLARRLS LABCKHA TUHEES LIMITED
Soes ia ghe coomalidaied finascial ststemeniy (oomtimued)
{Corréncy: Tmlisn Fupees in Lakhi)
AL Thee groig doss o fivee ay mverovalsde property whine ke doalsare o eld i de ngme of e cospany,

43 Thi gt how oot geoied ey s o sdvaies b ihe nsure il boss e promiiems, direciie ssd KM elhiber severally o jussly wiih sy other pensa.

& The gmup does mt have my bommmwings fiom twmks mocd fmanecind inssimiiond which wis oot esed for the spectfic murpase firr wiich il-was sakien #t the
Iralance shest il

45 The group haz not revakued s Fropeny, Planand Equipnemn during the year.
A% The prour dues it have ame Infaneible asveis noder develiopement

AT The grvup oy 0o Bave any Seleme of Ansngensnis whili hio been approsed b e UComgetent Suthoity mm teoms of sectons 2300 237 al e
Compsiiinn Act, I043

A% The group oy canapliod witl te nuoser of Bpers preseribod nder efase T el swemon 2 of the A e with Comgpanias (Resioeinn on s of
Lsversh ®oles, T01T

A% Mo procecdmg heve hevn mniaied or peadme agamst e proup under the Bonuss Tmnsecaoos (Prohisineesg Act 1ORE (45 o 19550 aod e Rubes ninde
iereundsr

20 Tha Parcnt coparmy. Bk borrowings firosn te bk oin the bty of amurity of camos pescis,
The Farent company fifed momsly and guancrdy smigmonn which e in sgrecment wach the boeoks of oocoms.

S1 The grdip bais ik been dlezbarel wilful defiulier by iy e or Snomeal sssticalio i gt o sy odher givemmenil oithisibes

&1 Relationship with Strock off Campanies - The gromp does not bave any momuse bom sed halances with companivs which o struci off
53 Tha Parmi conpraire dots ol han sy chargs or astlsiaetion wei o be rogistoned with roglsioar of ¢ompanys beyand the statukory perod.

S Mo (s bave been mdvapeed or bamed or sestad ejibay foan boppered e o shage premium ooy sothe ssmees oo kesd o fidsi by the grogp o or
in e wither prpstmia o snizydies), incloding forezs entities Ciniemmeadiaries™), with 2 underiomling, whether reconded i writing or otherwiss, thal e
[evtermeliury sball, whether, direcaly or mdivecily lend or et in utber persoss or endizies Wendifisd in mmy sanier whaiseever by uean befald s he graup
PUllmie Beneleianis") o proyide any gusmnies, sscuriy a0 te Dk oo belull'of the Ulireie Bensflciaes

Fortier, mo fands by hoen received by the gronp froen mry persood sl o miilyfis ), mchoding Reedgn ostities | “Funding Pasties™, with the mdiortasding,
whether recarded m writing ar ciherwise, thal the group shall, whether, dircctly or indirceely. bend or mvest n ather pervans oc cniibes sdentificd in any

merner whatsoever oy or on behall'sl the Fundmyg Py LRz Bensficismies" ) ar prosice any gearansee, seguricy or ihe |ike om hehabl of the |inmess
Aensliwiarie

24 The group decs ot have any ransaction which 1 oot reeocded in-the binks of scoounie that bas bee sunendered or disclosed a5 meceme duning e year n
the tax pssesameurs under the bocere Las Act, 1960 pch e seanli or survey or sy echer refeves provisioms of ibe beome T Act, 1961,

b The proup bz nod trined or mwetid m oryphe l.'un:\'nl.'x v virdunl curendy during e fioandm! war

BT Advances Wecoverable thcesd or b oo, include s 8781 Lakh due from babans fodeom % Lid opsist wihich magier s prming fie srsirason,

SR Pursant v Secrion. 193 of the Companiss Aol 2003 read wich nede W od the Companies [Corg Sovial Eesponsfhiliny Policy, Rule 20143, [he dewmils are
R nider
Particulars Al
£y At el 1o Be spent by the coompany during ihe vear 1725
1 At of sxpenditare il 107,33
Re) Shoaifall 21 the eud of he venr Wil
143 Tuinl of previous vess shori &l ik
T Bensan ol shatfill Hil
AT Mabine 0 TUSE activinle Eduation, Henlil
andd Ervironenenl
(i) Ederaiis af pelated party mansaction ‘A
il Wheroa proyisen is.nude with wapoect io o lisbilicy sewred by omomg biie o WA

eommiraciunl nhiigation
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| urrunny Il Bupes 1 akin)
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hars ik Shwry i inzal
aminiy i
& -‘I i oo e o lone LT EE TR R (DT gy gy b e
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IR A§ T al As sl [ wnpaidliaie il
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I §tame Ao Hlammrs | sherpnn 1 jirmnl TS ATANE T AT AR ([ 1 4170 EIES S B LTR
Wil Chswmin Seis bllany st iy
I §lekiz it P T el 154 TSR EE] EATIEY L0 - Frattl TR
| ivaal THLIF R [ 4 b AL 412w i i i re
Aty ariig oul o conwane - - = -
A st 31 Wapeh 2924 e 4L a1 BTN
E¥ ezl
N ARt Le., vals
i Shuire b |
anwrey mite minl & i
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i N e af Sibyidinry A Fral i .0
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITEDR
Mutes b the comsabidated financlal datements t.dum]uurdj
(Cwrreney: Indian Rupees in Lalkhs)

) Dpersting Sepment
Ao Deserighion of segmicnts ond principal activities

The business activities of the CGroup from which B eems oevenoes ond incors axpenses; whise aperaling remlis are regulory reviewed by the chied operaling
docisin maker o make dectssms about resoarees ue b ablocied o the gegment and assess a8 periimane, ond G owhsch diseress faneanl olommation i
ivailable volve |'_||nk|111i|1.||1llyuru} s g, mamufucturing of pharmaeemicals, medicingl chemical & botumicad |'|n_1.:l|.4i:|5|

B D formuaion whoat imajur ciestomniers
Revennes from one customer of the Croup's pharmaceunenl sepments represenied approximately B 2485,49 Lakl(3 1 March 2025 Re. 4107 33 Lakh) of the
Crrowp's 1otal revenaes.

Gi The compony b prepared these financinl stitements, as per e formal, preseribeil Iy schediele 111 of the Companies Act, 20013 (the schedule . lssued by Minisiny
ol Corparale Allairs.
Previows year fignres have been recastresitnted und reclassified, wherever necesrary toeonfinm the classifleation of the eument vear

For KRISHAN K, GUPFTA & C, For andd on beball of the board of diveciors af
Chartered Accounianis Wartin And Harvis Laboratorics Linited

FRM: Mg

KK, GUPTA SAKENT LMY KL LAAD
Prequsictar Rirpotor Derector

Wi, 0831 8 DM i T HeRH TR
Place: vew Ehelh

[raned; Wb August, 2024
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I undelivered please return to:

MARTIN AND HARRIS LABARATORIES LIMITED
N.H.-8, Delhi-Jaipur Highway,

Village Pachgaon (Fazalwas),

Distt. Gurgaon, Haryvana(India)



